Agenda Item 3
240 E. Deerpath
Signage — Business Name Change
Pet People to Hollywood Feed

Staff Report
Minutes from January HPC Meeting
Vicinity Map

Materials Submitted by Petitioner
Application

Statement of Intent - Updated

Existing and Proposed Wall Signage
Proposed Sign Details

Proposed Door Lettering and Graphics

Proposed Signage Presented at January HPC Meeting
Images of Other Current and Past Deerpath Streetscape Signage

Historic Preservation Commission
March 20, 2024



THE CITY OF

LAKE FOREST

CHARTERED 1861

STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION

TO: Acting Chairman Hanson and members of the Historic Preservation Commission
DATE: March 20, 2024
FROM: Catherine Czetniak, Director of Community Development

SUBJECT:  Replacement Sign to Reflect Business Name Change
PetPeople to Hollywood Feed

TENANT PROPERTY LOCATION HISTORIC DISTRICTS
Hollywood Feed 240 E. Deerpath Fast Lake Forest Local &
1341 Warford Streets National Historic District

Memphis, TN 38108

REPRESENTATIVE

Collin Seymour, Office Manager
The Sign Palace, Inc.

68 N. Lively Boulevard

Elk Grove Village, IL. 60007

Property Owner
Yogesh Gandhi

545 N. Mayflower Road
Lake Forest, IL. 60045

Background

In March 2022 Hollywood Feed acquited PetPeople, a pet product retail business located in first
floor tenant space on the west side of the building addressed as 240 E. Deetpath. The building is
located on the northeast corner of Deerpath and Forest Avenue, across from the main entrance to
City Hall. At the request of Hollywood Feed, the property owner has submitted a request for a
Certificate of Appropriateness for replacement signage to reflect the change in ownetship.

Commission Review of this Petition To Date

The Commission considered this petition at the January 2024 meeting, offered comment, and
continued the petition with ditection to the petitioner to refine the proposed signage to more closely
align with the character of other signs along Deerpath. Since the meeting in January, discussions
have occurred between the petitioner’s representatives and City staff. Clarification was provided
confirming that no stotefront alterations are proposed, only replacement signage.

The minutes of the January Histotic Preservation Commission meeting are attached to this report
for additional background.

Revised signage plans wete submitted and are included in the Commission’s packet.

Staff Evaluation

Wall Sign

The replacement wall sign is proposed in the same location as the existing sign, above the main

entrance on the front facade, and is slightly smaller than the existing sign. A non-illuminated sign is

800 FIELD DRIVE ¢ LAKE FOREST, ILLINOIS 60045 + TEL 847.234.2600 « WwW.CITYOFLAKEFOREST.COM



Staff Report and Recommendation — 240 Deerpath Page 2 of 3
March 20, 2024

proposed. At the January Commission meeting, the point was made that neither the existing
PetPeople sign, nor other signs for other businesses fronting on Deetpath are luminated.

The existing sign is comprised of single letters mounted on the brick fagade. The letters at the tallest
point are 28 inches in height and the series of letters spans a distance of 144 inches. The lettets are
not mounted on a backer board. The existing sign totals 28 square feet. There is not a clear record
of how the existing sign was approved. It was not presented to the Commission for review and
should have been.

The wall sign as now proposed includes a two inch thick aluminum backer board which will be painted
a dark green. Individual one inch thick acrylic letters will be pin mounted to the backer board and
painted 2 gold colot. Other signs along Deerpath have backer boards. The color as represented on
the images included in the packet appears more yellow than intended. The gold color will be custom
created to align with the color of letteting on signs used at several other locations in the business
district. Although white lettering was discussed at the January meeting, the gold, on the green
background appeats subtler than bold white lettering and will be quieter on the Deerpath

streetscape. As with previous signs in the business district, final color selection and approval will be
subject to staff approval ptior to the issuance of a permit for the sign.

The thickness of both the backer board and the lettering will offer some dimension to the sign
against the brick wall.

The proposed sign, including the backer board, totals just under 25 square feet and is consistent with
the signage size limitations in the Code. The tallest letters are proposed at 19 inches, the tallest
letters on the existing sign are 28 inches. The sign, including the backer board is 128.5 inches long.

Door and Window Signage

Vinyl lettering and graphics are proposed on the entrance doors. As requested by the Commission,
the business name is not repeated on the doots, instead, the operating hours of the business and
specific language pertaining to the business, “leashed dogs” is noted on the entry doots. The
proposed lettering ranges in size from six and a half inches to just over eight inches in height. The
lettering on the doots is proposed as a reddish brown outlined in the gold used on the wall sign
above. Staff has requested that green lettering with the gold outline be considered by the business
owner for consistency with the wall sign and the awnings.

In addition to limited text, two graphics ate proposed on the doors, a thirteen and a half inch tall cat
and an almost thirty-seven inch tall dog. Both the cat and dog are proposed reddish brown with a
gold outline. As with the lettering, staff has requested that the petitioner consider using consistent
colors, the green and gold tones used on the wall sign above and on the awning. The dog and cat
images add whimsy to the stote front and because of the placement low on the doots, and if done
with appropriate colors, the images will not appear prominent or distuptive on the streetscape.

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval of the replacement signage reflecting the new name of the business based on
the findings detailed above and subject to the following conditions.

1. The green and gold colors on the wall sign shall be subject to final approval by staff. The
selected color tones should match the awnings and a gold, rather than a mustard yellow,
color, is intended for the lettering consistent with gold lettering used on signs elsewhere in
the Central Business District.



Staff Report and Recommendation — 240 Deerpath Page 3 of 3
Mazch 20, 2024

2. Consideration should be given to using the approved green and gold tones on the vinyl
lettering and graphics on the doors.



Excerpt
Historic Preservation Commission
Proceedings of the January 30, 2024 Meeting

A meeting of the Lake Forest Historic Preservation Commission was held on Tuesday,
January 30, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. at the City of Lake Forest City Hall, 220 E. Deerpath,
Lake Forest, lllinois.

Historic Preservation Commissioners present: Chairman Maureen Grinnell and
Commissioners Lloyd Culbertson, Elizabeth Daliere, Robin Petit, Geoffrey Hanson,
and Leif Soderberg.

Commissioners absent: Tina Dann-Fenwick

City staff present: Catherine Czerniak, Director of Community Development

skkck
’

4. Consideration of a request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for a replacement
sign reflecting the new name of an existing business at 240 E. Deerpath. Pet People is
now Hollywood Feed.

Property Owner: The Chicago Trust Company, Asha Gandbhi, trustee
Tenant: Hollywood Feed
Representative: Collin Seymour, Sign Palace

Chairman Grinnell asked the Commission for any Ex Parte contacts or conflicts of
interest. Hearing none, she invited a presentation from the petitioner.

Mr. Seymour stated that he did not prepare a presentation but noted that materials
are included in the Commission’s packet. He explained that Hollywood Feed
recently purchased Pet People and is undertaking a Nation-wide change in the
branding. He stated that the proposed signage will match other locations in the
Chicago area and noted that use of the corporate colors and branding is proposed.
He stated a willingness to discuss the illumination. He noted that the building is
different from others in the area.

Ms. Czerniak stated that to date, staff has not been able to reach anyone from
Hollywood Feed adding that normally, staff engages the business owner in signage
discussions. She stated that based on the limited information provided to date, staff
recommends continuing the petition to allow time to meet with Mr. Seymour and
representatives of Hollywood Feed. She clarified that the existing Pet People sign is
not illuminated as stated in the material submitted by the petitioner. She pointed out
that there are not illuminated signs along the Deerpath streetscape. She stated that
the sign appears to be consistent with the 25 square foot limitation assuming a

Historic Preservation Cormmission Minutes — January 30 2024 - Excerpt

Page 1 of 3



backboard is not proposed. She stated that it is unclear from the material submitted
whether or not a backboard is proposed. She stated that some signage and
graphics are proposed on the door adding that the Commission in the past has
discouraged redundant signage. She noted however that given the uniqueness of
this business, some information such as the fact that leashed animals are permitted in
the store may be appropriate along with the hours of the business. She
recommended continuing the petition to allow staff fo connect with the petitioner
and the petitioners’ representative to get clarification and to discuss various aspects
of the petition.

In response to questions from Commissioner Petit, Mr. Seymour confirmed that the sign
at the Deerfield store was modified to meet that community’s standards. He stated
that the Deerfield sign is illuminated with white face and black returns on the letters.

Commissioner Petit noted the potential to identify the space with signage on the
awning valances. She stated support for putting the hours of the business on the
door. She noted that because the parking is in the back, door signage should be
located on the rear door as well. She stated support for the sign without a backer
board, just a script sign. She stated that if a lighted sign is proposed, it should be on
the Forest Avenue sign. She encouraged the use of green for the sign as used
throughout the community.

Mr. Seymour stated that since he has now seen the site, he will take some ideas back
to Hollywood Feed including providing signage on the rear door to the business. He
stated that the backboard was eliminated in Deerfield and stated that the same can
be done at this location. He stated that his company does not do sighage on
awnings so that is not within the scope of the project.

In response to questions from Commissioner Soderberg, Mr. Seymour stated that the
intention is to replace the signage at the location of the existing signage. He stated
that the intent is to avoid damage to the facade. He stated that signage on Forest
Avenue is not being considered. He confirmed that green was used in Deerfield for
the signage but noted that the graphics on the door are yellow and red. He stated
that most communities do not require a permit for door graphics.

In response to questions from Commissioner Hanson, Mr. Seymour stated that the sign
was spec'd to be internally iluminated. He stated that he is now aware that the
existing sign is not lighted nor are other signs on the street lighted. He confirmed that
he will ask Hollywood Feed about alternate colors. He stated that letters with a white
face with a black return, the sides of the letters, have been used in other locations.

In response to a question from Commissioner Hanson, Ms. Czerniak confirmed that if
two signs are proposed, the maximum permitted signage area would sfill be 25
square feet.

Historic Preservation Commission Minutes — January 30 2024 - Excerpt

Page 2 of 3



In response to questions from Chairman Grinnell, Mr. Seymour acknowledged that the
type of business is not changing so customers will still know the location as a pet store
despite the name change.

In response to a question from Ms. Czerniak, Mr. Seymour confirmed that there is no
infention to paint the bricks or replace the doors or windows.

Hearing no further comments from the Commission, Chairman Grinnell invited public
testimony.

Mr. Gleason noted that a letter was submitted by the Lake Forest Preservation
Foundation agreeing with the staff report. He stated that the Foundation has a
concern that as presented, the signage may not conform to the signage standards.

Hearing no further public testimony Chairman Grinnell invited final questions and
comments from the Commission.

Commissioner Culbertson stated that the petition is very incomplete adding that
more information and the involvement of the business owner is important.

In response to questions from Commissioner Hanson, Commissioner Culbertson noted
that there were several guestions that Mr. Seymour was not able to answer until he
consults with the business owners.

Commissioner Hansen stated that in his opinion, it is not a good use of time for the
petition to be continued. He suggested that the Commission can provide direction fo
the petitioner on what would be acceptable.

Commissioners Culbertson and Daliere stated that additional information is needed
along with the involvement of the owner.

Hearing no further comments, Chairman Grinnell invited a motion.

Commissioner Culbertson made a motion to continue the petition to allow the issues
raised to be clarified and addressed and the business owner to be consulted.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Daliere and was approved by a vote of
610 0.

* kK

Historic Preservation Commission Minutes — January 30 2024 - Excerpt

Page 3 of 3



Area of Request
240 E. Deerpath




LARE TORIST

TM g IYE 4

Tue Crry oF LAKE FOREST

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPLICATION FOR A

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

‘ 240
PROJECT ADDRESS: #20 Fast Deevpath Road, Lake Forest, 1L 60013

s\PPLICA‘mw TYPE
RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS ] COMMERCIAL PROJECTS
%B \c\x Residence 0 Dmmhtlmx(omplct( [ New Building [J Landscape/Parking
Q New Accessory Building [} Demolition Partial [] Addition/Alteration [ Lighting
"0 Addition/ Alteration {71 Height Variance [ Ieight Variance Signage or Awaings
3 2Juilding Scale Variance [ Other {3 Other

|
VRNV Spempm—————

MISTORIC DISTRICT OR LOCAL LANDMARK (leave blank if unknown)
01 Green Bay Road District 0 Vine/Oakwood/Green Bay Road District

B8 East Lake Forest District

Local Landmark Property

or District

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

Yogesh Gandhi

0 Other

Collin Seymour, Oftice Munager

" Oramer of Property

545 N. Mayflower Rd.

The Sign Falace, Inc

Name and Tutle of Person Presenting Project

ARCHITECT/BUILDER INFORMATION

" Oumer's Street Address (mity Frtay be dtﬂ'rrml from project addrfcsf Name of Frrm

Lake Forest, IL 60045
" City, State and Zip Code -

X1T-095- 1001/ 847-33 1-RGLE

65 N, Lively Bled.

Street Address

Elk Grove Village, IL 6006G7

Phone Number

i sTazelysuites.com

Far Number _ City, State and Zip Code

»17-510-1335

2ol Adddress

Yogh @ gtetelysutes: com

" Phone Number

accountingwsignpalace.com

Far Number

T Fmail Address

s V5 NI S, | Clloctoyps

" Cumer’s Signature

Representative’s Signature (drciutect? Builder'

'}:‘he staf!' report is avaxlable the Frlday before the meetmg, after 8 wpm,

the Cammamg' Development Department

I Please email s copy-of the mﬁ‘repart 7. OOwner [ REPRESENTATIVE ?
| Please fix a copy of the ﬁ‘mﬁ' report -  Dowex O BE&’RESWATW'ﬁ
I'will pick up a mpyaftbeatxﬂ'mportat IO A [ZID\ E Rmmﬁmmwg 3



TRUST OWNERSHIP (ExnisiT C)

Please bst the Trust numbar and name and address of the Trustee. as viell as the names and addrasses of
all banaficianos of the Trust. together with their mspachve interests i the Trust  The application shall be
a8 o bunefivia) owner of an

further venfied by the apphcant in his capacily as Trustee or by the beneoficitiry
interest in the Trust and the application shall be signed individualfly by ag many bonalciarios a8 org

necessary to constitule greater than 50% ownorship of the beneficial inlerast of the trust

| TRUSYNUMBER [.F T — 1.1

¢

Ay

e

LT S

Beneficlaries e
Name ASNO_GAVDWS Mgy fC | Name U
Pleei-t SHOLING  PLais |
| Address 545 &) MANFLowe YL LD | Address
PA Cc(iz,r,s'r) Il értms

| Trustinterest | o0 L PESS—— % | Trust Interest . .

| Name R o Name . 1
Aridress - | Address !
Trust Interest g |Trustinterest %

— H

5 T
 Name | Name _
; Address | Address
| Trust Interest % | Trustinterest % |

- TRUSTEE INFORMATION

Name “THEZ CWI ¢ Afe TOUT [o.

Firm WIAQLOST wy Bl

Mo
e BT £y

Address 1025 ¢ weSTL(L  AVET,

C hacfte , it £céyn
Phone 473 - 296 (209 -




gignpalace..

March 12%, 2024

From: Sign Palace Inc.
68 N Lively Blvd, Elk Grove, IL 60007

To: The City of Lake Forest Historic Preservation Commission

Whom it may concern,

The included documents are for our proposal to update wall signage at 240 E Deerpath Rd in
Historic East Lake Forest District. The purpose of this project is to update the branding of an
existing location (Pet People) with their new business name and design (Hollywood Feed).

The scope of the work includes the removal of the existing flat-cut letters wall sign from the
building location and the replacement with a new aluminum pan sign with acrylic dimensional
letters as depicted in the provided documents. The new wall sign will be painted to match the
historical Lake Forest Green and is to be mounted flush to the building wall with 1” thick
Harvest Gold lettering. This color scheme is present on Deerpath Rd. with signage such as the
Griffith, Grant, & Lackic Realtors building sign.

This will not only bring the visual aesthetic of the property up to date, but it will also allow
access to provide maintenance to the existing brick fagade which will be left unaltered. The
updates to the location will vastly improve the appearance of the said business as well as
allowing cohesive branding for the company throughout all their Illinois locations while still
upholding the aesthetics and principles set forth by the Historical Preservation Commission.

Best Regards,
Sign Palace Inc.

Collin Seymour

Office Manager
847-640-1335
accounting(@signpalace.com

68 North Lively Boulevard | Elk Grove Village, llliinois 60007 | P:847.640.1335 | F:847.640.1343 | www.signpalace.com



WALL SIGN - PROPOSED AND EXISTING

Hollywood Feed #445
240 East Deerpath Road
Lake Forest, IL 60045

OPTION 1
oWALL SIGN

aTy (1) 255QFT

\\/
SCOPE OF WORK:
e REMOVE EXISTING CHANNEL LETTERS

o INSTALL NEW S/F NON-ILLUMINATED WALL SIGN
VISION
SIGN GROUP

Your Vision ] Your Brand l Our Commitment

Project: 5059

SCALE: NTS
Corporate HQ:

358 E Grafton Rd Farimont, WV 26554
Office: 304.366.3021
www.visionsigngroup.com
This arlwork is an criginal design solely for the purpose of
presentation. Artwork shown in this document is ewned by Vision
Sign Group, 8 division of Vision Custorn Signs LLC No copies,

i use or ions ol any kind can be
made without written consent from Visien Sign Group, a division of
Vision Custom Signs, LLC. Customer signature for approval
indicales thal alf sizes, colors, speling and specifications are
accurale as represented and customer accepts gl Hability and cost
Py . involved if any of the information in this document becomes incorrect
45 -0 (540 ) STOREFRONT or invalid. Once signed, ihis document is legally binding in

conjunction wilh any estimate and or proposal presented for costs
involved vith the project illustrated on this design element. Any
changes required or requested must be presented to Vision Sign
Group and agreed upon by all parties to includs eny coslassaciated.
Chy de afler the designii o in
addtional cost te clien). Clienl agrees to pay any change order casts
associated with modifications requested and or made by client after
appravalhas beengranted.

Client Approval:

N

Date:
PLEASE CHECK ALL SPELLING, QUANTITIES,

COLORS_AND MATERIALS BEFORE APPROVING
Revisions:
A Final / DA / 02-06-24

/3\ Final /DA/02-28-24
/A\ Perspective / DR/ 03-06-24

Color & Materials:

-z e - ” = Project No: 5059 (OR)
PROPOSED (PROPOSED VIEW MAY NOT BE TO EXACT SCALE) Date: 09/07/2023
SCALE: 3/16" = 10" Hollywood Feed
Description: Lake Forest, IL

Sheet No: 5002




WALL SIGN - PROPQSED AND EXISTING

Hollywood Feed #445
240 East Deerpath Road
Lake Forest, IL 60045

PetPeeple
e T e E == OPTION 1
GWALL SIGN

ary (1) 25SQFT

\/
SCOPE OF WORK:
* REMOVE EXISTING CHANNEL LETTERS

* INSTALL NEW S/F NON-ILLUMINATED WALL SIGN
VISION
SIGN GROUP

Your Vision | Your Brand | Our Commitment

Project: 5059

EXISTING

SCALE: NTS
Corporate HQ:
358 E Grafton Rd Farimont, WV 26554

Office: 304.366.3021
www.visionsigngroup.com

This ariwork is an original design solely for the purpose of
presentztion. Artwork shown in this document is owned by Vision
Sign Group, a division of Vision Custom Signs LLC No copies.
i use or ions of any kind can be
made without wrilten consent from Vision Sign Groug, a division of
Vision Cuslom Signs, LLC. Customer signature for approval
indicales that all sizes, colors, speliing and specifications are
accurale as represented and customer accepts aft liabilily and cost
involved if any of the information in this document becomes incoect
45'—0 " (540") STOREFRONT or invalid. ,gnce signed, this documenl is legally binding in
== — T canjunction with any estimate and or proposal presented for costs
involved with the project illustrated on this design element. Any
changes required of requested must be presented fo Vision Sign
Group and agreed upon by all parties te include any cost associated.
Ch: de after the tan it been in
addiional cos! fo client. Client agrees to pay any change order costs
associated with madifications requested and of made by client after
approvalhas been granted.

Client Approval:

N

Date:
PLEASE CHECK ALL SPELLING, QUANTITIES,
COLORS. AND MATERIALS BEFORE APPROVING
Revisions:

é Final / DA / 02-06-24

A Final / DA / 02-28-24
/A\ Perspective / DR/ 03-06-24

Color & Materials:

e SRp— : - ! - _ Project No: 5059 (OR)

PROPOSED (PROPOSED VIEW MAY NOT BE TO EXACT SCALE) Date: 09/07/2023

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0” | Hollywood Feed
Description: Lake Forest, IL

Sheet No: 5002




128.5”

[» , 113.6"

28"
191:

1“ WHITE ACRYLIC FCO
PTM PMS 7563 C {(HARVEST GOLD)

~——— PTM PMS 7563 C (HARVEST GOLD)

SCOPE OF WORK:

« MANUFACTURE AND INSTALL (1) NON-ILLUMINATED WALL SIGN
« BACKER TO BE 2” DEEP FABRICATED ALUMINUM PAINTED TC MATCH

PMS 3425 C
* LOGO TO BE 1" THK ACRYLIC FCO PAINTED TO MATCH PMS 7563 C

¢ BORDER TO BE PAINTED TO MATCH PMS 7563 C

®

OPTION 1
WALL SIGN 25 SQFT
aTY (1) SCALE - 3/4" = 1%-0"

WALL
|
|

.063” ALUMINUM RETURNS
PTM FACE

#10 SCREW & ANCHOR

MINIMUM (8) AS REQ.
2” ALUM. SQ TUBE FRAME

VHB TAPE & SILICONE AS REQ.

- 1" THK ACRYLIC FCO - LOGO

PIN MOUNT WITH ALL-THREAD
ROD AND SILICONE ADHESIVE

.080" ALUMINUM FACE

- WEEP HOLES AS REQ.

WALL SIGN - PROPOSED

Hollywood Feed #445
240 East Deerpath Road
Lake Forest, IL 60045

Project: 5059

A
VISION
SIGN GROUP

Your Vision | Your Brand | Our Commitment

Corporate HQ:
358 E Grafton Rd Farimont, WV 26554
Office: 304.366.3021
www.visionsigngroup.com

This artwork 15 an original desion solely for the purpose of
presenlation. Artwork shovin in this document is owned by Vision
Sign Group. a division of Vision Custam Signs LLC. No copies,
i ized use or ions of any kind can be
mads without wrilten consent from Vision Sign Group, 2 division of
Vision Custom Signs, LLC. Customer signature for approval
indicales that ali sizes, colors, speling and spevifications are
accurale as represented and customer accepls all iabilty and cost
involvedif any of the i ion in this dg t i
or invalid. Once signed, this document is Jegally binging n
conjunclion wilh any estimate and or proposal presenled for costs
involved with the project Hustrated on this design element Any
changes tequired or requested must be presented to Vision Srgn
Group and agreed upor: by all parties to include any cost associated.
Changes made afler the design inlenthas been approved my result in
additional cos! to cfient. Clien! agrees to pay eny change order cosls
associaled with modifications requestec and or made by client after
approval has beengranted.

Client Approval:

N

Date:

PLEASE CHECK ALL SPELLING, CUANTITIES,
COLORS. AND MATERIALS BEFORE APPROVING

Revisions:
A Final / DA / 02-06-24

/3\ Final / DA/ 02-28-24

/A\ Perspective /DR / 03-06-24

Color & Materials:
. PMS 3425 C {LAKE FOREST GREEN)
@ PMS 7563 C (HARVEST GOLD)
- BM 2173-20 TAWNY ROSE

Project No: 5059 (DR)

Date: 09/07/2023

Hollywood Feed
iDescrintion: Lake Forest, IL

Sheet No: 5003
'—_



DOCR LETTERING AND GRAPHICS - PROPOSED

Hollywood Feed #445
240 East Deerpath Road
Lake Forest, IL 60045

Project: 5059

8.1"

N
\/

VISION

SIGN GROUP

Your Vision | Your Brand { Our Commitment

Corporate HQ:

358 E Grafton Rd Farimont, WV 26554
Office: 304.366.3021
www.visionsigngroup.com
1 8“ This artwork is an original design solely for the purpose of

presentation. Arlwork shown in this cocurent is owned by Vision
Sign Group. a division of Vision Custom Signs LLC. Na copies,

i use or of any kind can be
made without written consen from Vision Sign Group. a division of

JHOURSIGHOEERETION Vision Cusiom Signs. LLC. Customer signature for approval
indicates that sll sizes, colors, speling and specifeations are
MONISAT RO 302 _accurale‘as represented and_ custamer accepis all liabilty _and cost
involved if any of the information in this document bacomes incomrect

ar invalid. Once signed, this document is legally binding in
conjunction with any estimate and or proposal presenled for costs
involved with the project Hustrated on this design elemen! Any
changes required or requested must be presented fo Vision Sign
Group and agreed upon by all parties 1o include any cos! associated.
Chi he i ftin

6.5"

additiona; cost la dient. Clienl agrees o pay any change order cosls
associated with modifications requested and or made by client afler
approvelhas beengranted.

Client Approval:

N

Date:
PLEASE CHECK ALL SPELLING, QUANTITIES,

COLORS, AND MATERIALS BEFORE APPROVING
Revisions:
!S Final / DA / 02-06-24

ff} Final / DA/ 02-28-24
/A\ Perspective / DR / 03-06-24

36.7"

Color & Materials:
PMS 115 C

B rvsasac

NOTE: FEET OF DOG AND CAT TO BE CUT OFF IN FIELD. SCALE - 3/4" = 1"-0" . PMS 476 C
[] whie
i Project No: 5059 (DR}
SCOPE OF WORK: Date: 09/07/2023

Hollywood Feed
DOOR VINYL (DOUBLE) » REMOVE EXISTING DOOR VINYL SCALE - 3/4” = 1'-0" Description: Lake Forest, IL

arvm » INSTALL NEW DOOR VINYL Sheet No: 5004




FROM JANUARY HPC MEETING - EXISTING AND PROPOSED WALL SIGN

Hollywood Feed #445
240 East Deerpath Road
Lake Forest, IL 60045

Project: 5059

o CHANNEL LETTERS

QTY (1) 24.77 SQFT / \
\l/
SCOPE OF WORK;

QTY. (1) SET OF FACE-LIT CHANNEL LETTERS

ON BACKER PANEL FLUSHED MOUNTED
VISION
SIGN GROUP

Eéglf;n'l\}!lgl Your Vision | Your Brand | Our Commitment
Corporate HQ:

358 E Grafton Rd Farimont, WV 26554
Office: 304.366.3021
www.visionsigngroup.com

This artwork is an orginal design solely for the purpose of
presentation. Artwork shown i Lhis cocument is owned by Vision
Sign Group. & division af Vison Custom Signs LLC No capies.
recreations unauthored use or reproductons of any kind can be
made without wiitlen caasent from Vision Sigr Group, a diviston of
Vision Custom Signs. LLC. Customer signature for approval
indicates thal all sizes, colors. speling and specificaticns are
accwrate as representes and customer accepts ak iiability and cast
involved if any of the in this d 1t bect i 1
A5°.0" (540") STOREFRONT or invalid. Once signed. tis documenl 1s tegally binding in

— — — | conunctior. wilh any estimate and of preposal presented for costs
involved with the project Hustrated on this design element Any
changes requred or requested must be presened to Vision $gn
Groupand agreed upon by all parties te include any cost associated
(‘ fier he desig has been ap) yresultin
addiional cost tc clienl. Clienl agress to pay any change order costs
associated with modifications requestec and ar made by clent after
approvalhasbeergranted.

Client Approval:

N

Date:

PLEASE CHECK ALL SPELLING, QUANTITIES,
COLORS_AND MATERIALS BEFORE APPROVING

Revisions:
& Description / Initials / Date

& Description / Initials / Date

& Description / Initials / Date

Color & Materials:

Project No: 5059 (DR)

PROPOSED (PROPOSED VIEW MAY NOT BE TO EXACT SCALE) Date: 09/07/2023
Hollywood Feed

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"
Description: Lake Forest, IL
Sheet No: 5002




CURRENT AND PAST DEERPATH STREETSCAPE SIGNAGE



Agenda Item 4
261 North Mayflower Road
Demolition — No Replacement Structure

Staff Report
Vicinity Map
Air Photos

Materials Submitted by Petitioner
Application

Statement of Intent

Plat of Survey

Historic Resource Evaluation
Landscaping Concepts
Correspondence

Materials shown in italics are included in the Commission packet only. A complete copy of
the packet is available from the Community Development Department.

Historic Preservation Commission
March 20, 2024



THE CITY OF

LAKE FOREST

CHARTERED 1861

STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION

TO: Chairman Grinnell and Members of the Historic Preservation Commission

DATE: March 20, 2024

FROM: Abigail Vollmers, Senior Planner Community Development

SUBJECT: 261 North Mayflower Road — Demolition of Existing Residence and Attached

Garage
Property Owners Property Location Historic Districts
Bellevue Place, LLC (Diana R. East side of Mayflower Road, East Lake Forest Local &
Moore Trust) between Maplewood and National Register Historic
Iinois Roads Districts

Representative

Susan Benjamin, Benjamin,
Benjamin Historic
Certifications, LL.C

Summary of the Request
This is a request for a Cettificate of Appropriateness to authorize the demolition of the existing

tesidence and attached garage. No replacement structure or redevelopment of the 2.84-acre
property is proposed. The owners intend to reinforce the lakefront bluff with structural
enhancements at the top and bottom while also adding extensive drainage improvements to
eliminate the existing erosion concerns. These improvements will be an extension of the significant
bluff stabilization and restoration work completed by the Moore’s on the adjacent property they
own at 255 North Mayflower Road which is their family home. A minor re-working of the
configuration of the driveway for the 255 North Mayflower Road property is planned to eliminate a
blind curve. For the foreseeable future, the 255 and 261 properties will function as a single zoning
lot.

A comprehensive landscaping plan to enhance the full site with native understory and pollinator
habitat plantings will be implemented. Existing trees and topography will be preserved except for
the areas that must be impacted to stabilize and restore the bluff.

Detailed materials provided by the petitioners are included in the Commission’s packets. The
information is not tepeated in detail in this report. The materials include a report from Benjamin
Historic Certifications LLC, a preservation consultant.

Desctription of the Property and Surrounding Area

The property is located on the east side of Mayflower Road along the lakefront. A full bluff
comprises the eastern edge of the property. The home is bordered on the north by 263 North
Mayflower Road, 2 home built in 2008/2009 and 255 North Mayflower Road on the south, which,
as noted above, is owned and occupied by the Moore family. To the west, the property 1s adjacent
to an itregularly shaped property, addressed as 259 North Mayflower Road, on which the driveway
access to the 261 and 263 property is located. The 259 North Mayflower Road property was
previously developed with a small house which was demolished by the previous property owner in
2020 after approval by the Historic Preservation Commission.

800 FIELD DRIVE *+ LAKE FOREST, ILLINOIS 60045 ¢ TEL 847.234.2600 « www.CITYOFLAKEFOREST.COM



Staff Report and Recommendation — 261 North Mayflower Road Page 2 of §
March 20, 2024

The property in this request totals almost three acres most of which is expansive grounds with many
mature trees and landscaped patio areas closer to the house. The property is located on the very
eastern edge of the east Lake Forest residential area, some distance from the City’s Central Business
District and train station. The propetty is similar in size to the surrounding properties in the area.

The original house on the property was constructed in 1890 and significantly altered n 1951-52 as
detailed in the materials included in the Commission’s packet.

Staff Review

The Historic Preservation Commission is charged with preserving and protecting structures and
sites having a special histotical, community or architectural interest or value to the community. The
Commission is ot charged with preserving all old structures. In fact, the integrity of the City’s
preservation ordinance itself is protected and strengthened through the due diligence with which the
Commission considers each unique property and request. It is essential that the Commission is
selective about determining which structures are worth preserving, those that are found to have a
high level of historic importance, to be of exceptional architectural design with pure and accurate
detailing, and constructed of quality materials. Neglect is not justification for demolition, howevet,
the Commission is charged with looking beyond cutrent conditions and considering the “bones” of
structutes, the original grandeut, the importance of the original or subsequent architects, and
changes made over time and whether or not they served to preserve the historic integrity of the

property.

Demolition
A review of the standards for demolition is provided below.

Demolition Criteria 1 -- Whether the property, structure or object is of such historic, cultural,
architectural or archaeological significance that its demolition would be detrimental to the
public interest and contrary to the general welfare of the people of the city and the state.

This propetty itself is important and located in the Historic District. However, the structure, the
residence and attached garage, is not extraordinary and its demolition would not be detrimental to the
public interest or contraty to the general welfare of the community. The residence was constructed
in 1890 for Isabelle Corwith (“Bombie™) and Chatles B. McGenniss in a shingle style by Architect
Arthur Heun. The home was completely renovated in 1951-52 for Mrs Donald Ryerson, the
daughter of Isabelle Corwith (“Bombie”) McGenniss by architect Herman Lackner.

The renovation of 1951-52 included a complete remake of the residence. The entire exterior of the
home was changed from the shingle style to a Colonial Revival house with a smaller roofline in which
none of the original character survived. The detailing of the updated colonial house includes a heavy
front porch with four columns, an oversized transom above the front door, and an overall lack of
design consistency. The materials are average quality without any particular attention to detailing.
The colonial architecture pales in comparison to the original shingle style home and it 1s quite clear
that the structure lost its histotic, cultural, and architectural importance with that renovation, and that
its demolition would not be detrimental to the public interest. In fact, relandscaping the site,
testoting the bluff in 2 manner that preserves the existing features of the site, and allowing the land to
become a buffer to the Howard Van Doren Shaw house “Little Orchard” at 255 North Mayflower
Road, could offer a significant benefit to the public interest and the Historic District for the
foreseeable future.



Staff Report and Recommendation — 261 North Mayflower Road Page 3 of 5
March 20, 2024

Demolition Criteria 2 -- Whether the property, structure or object contributes to the
distinctive historic, cultural, architectural or archeological character of the District as a whole
and should be preserved for the benefit of the people of the city and the state.

The residence is identified as a Conttibuting Structure to the District because of its age. As a result
of the Conttibuting Structure designation, thorough due diligence is necessary in consideting the
present tequest. The study for this petition involved an independent consultant’s research on the
history of the propetty, an extensive site inspection of the existing structure and careful consideration
of the property and surrounding area.

The propetty itself, not the residence, contributes significantly to the historic character of the
Historic District. The mature trees and bluffs edge should be carefully considered as context to the
sutrounding historical structures and preserved to the extent possible. The City’s Historic Residential
and Open Space Ovetlay Disttict provides a strong framework to assure that any future
redevelopment will be considered in the context of the significant features and identifying
characteristics of the site.

Demolition Criteria 3 -- Whether demolition of the property, structure or object would be
contrary to the purpose and intent of this Chapter and to the objectives of the historic
presetvation for the applicable District.

The residence has been significantly altered in form, massing, detailing and materials since the time of
otiginal construction. The residence lacks the level of character and distinction that would make it
worthy of preservation. The demolition of the residence and attached garage, would not be contrary
to the purpose, intent or objectives of the Histotic Preservation Chapter in the City Code.

The property on which the residence is located is beyond street view and is sited prominently on the
lakefront. Preservation of the natural features of the site itself, rather than the existing structure, is
necessaty to meet the purpose and intent of the Historic Preservation Chapter.

Demolition Criteria 4 -- Whether the property, structure or object is of such old, unusual or
uncommon design, texture, and/or material that it could not be reproduced without great
difficulty and/or expense.

The residence is not of such old, unusual, or uncommon design, texture, or material that it could not
be reproduced without great difficulty or expense. The residence, of which none of its original
charactet is surviving, either intetior or exterior, has the architectural quality to be considered
anything other than unremarkable and is not at a level of detailing or character of other structures in
the Historic District. Based on the information submitted by the petitioner and staff research
including thorough on-site inspections, the residence lacks the historic and architectural integrity to
be of great importance to the district.

Demolition Criteria 5 -- Except in cases where the owner has no plans for a period of up to
five years to teplace an existing Landmark or property, structure or object in a District, no
Certificate of Appropriateness shall be issued until plans for a replacement structure or object
have been reviewed and approved by the Commission.



Staff Report and Recommendation — 261 North Mayflower Road Page 4 of 5
March 20, 2024

The current owners have no plans to replace the existing residence, no replacement structure is
envisioned or designed. The owners do not have plans to construct a replacement structure on the
property now or within five years.

If the demolition is approved, the structures will be removed along with the hardscape associated
with the residence. All debris will be removed from the site. The demolition will allow the planned
bluff stabilization and restoration work to proceed and following that, landscaping will be added to
provide an open space buffer to the north of the significantly historic Howard Van Doren Shaw
residence owned and occupied by the Moore family at 255 North Mayflower Road.

Although no redevelopment is planned by the ownerts, any future redevelopment of the site will
require teview and approval by the City’s Historic Preservation Commission. Redevelopment may
also require review and approval by the Plan Commission and City Council.

Public Comment

Public notice of this petition was provided in accordance with the City requirements and practices.
Notice was mailed by the Community Development Department to surrounding property owners and
the agenda for this meeting was posted at five public locations and on the City’s website. As of the
date of this writing, one comment in support of the demolition has been received and is included in
the Commission’s packet.

Recommendation
Based on the findings detailed in this staff report and incorporating the information submitted
by the petitioner, staff recommends approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness authorizing
the demolition of the residence and attached garage at 261 North Mayflower Road subject to the
following conditions.

1. Until demolition occurs, the structure must remain secure, all windows and doors closed and
locked to prevent unauthorized entry. General maintenance of the structure and overall
propetty shall continue in compliance with all Code requirements.

2. During demolition activity, all trees and vegetation, unless approved fore removal by the
City’s Cetrtified Atborist, shall be protected from damage. If determined to be necessary by
the City’s Certified Arborist, trees close to the areas of demolition activity shall be treated
with pre and post construction measures to increase the chances of long-term survival.

3. The residence shall be temoved in its entirety, including the basement and the site cleared of
all debris. The area of the basement shall be filled with material approved by the City and
graded even with existing grades on the site. The fill shall be compacted as directed by the

City.
4. Beyond the footprint of the house, grades shall not be altered during demolition activity.

5. On an ongoing basis, before, duting and after demolition, the property must be maintained.
All grass shall be mowed on a regular basis and trees, shrubs and other vegetation shall be
regularly maintained to avoid the appearance of an unkempt or overgrown propetty.



Staff Report and Recommendation — 261 North Mayflower Road Page 5 of 5
March 20, 2024

6. Any new structures proposed for the property shall require review and approval by the
Historic Preservation Commission based on the applicable standards in the Code to assure
compatibility with and a positive contribution to, the Historic District.



quest

261 Mayflower Road ~<

| Area of Re

1,




"R Area of Request
| 261 Mayflower Road

‘:'T’_'_,'it1

A5 S
o
- lg .

Wi Tl

S |




Area of Request
261 Mayflower Road

=




H I CIiTY (
LAKE FOREST

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPLICATION FOR A

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

PROJECT ADDRESS 3.6' A-)c,m-uﬂ M‘Ag-pluc,dtl* Ram_J

APPLICATION TYPE

RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS COMMERCIAL PROJECTS
[ New Residence Demolition Complete | [] New Building [] Landscape/Parking
[[] New Accessory Building [] Demolition Partial [0 Addition/Alteration [] Lighting
[] Addition/Alteration [] Height Variance [] Height Variance [[] Signage or Awnings
[[] Building Scale Variance [] Other O oOther N

HISTORIC DISTRICT OR LOCAL LANDMARK (leave blank if unknown)

B East Lake Forest District O Green Bay Road District [ Vine/Oakwood/Green Bay Road District
Local Landmark Property

o or District S Ciiies - -
PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION ARCHITECT/BUILDER INFORMATION
Bellege Mlace L€ N
Ouwner of Property Name and Title of Person Presenting Project
g ~rth MA n DL~
Ouwner's Street Address (may be dyfferent from project address) Name of Firm
LA Qe 'ppv-e“\ C
City, State and Zip Code Street Address
FIz-632~1100 _
Phone Number Fax Number City, State and Zip Code
Daca e DOTHMG. Cam B
Email 4ddress Phone Number Faz Number
Email Address
Ouner’s Signature S~—Jiepresentative’s Signature (Architect/ Builder)
The staff report is available the Friday before the meeting, after 3:00pm.
Please email a copy of the staff report OOWNER [0 REPRESENTATIVE
Please fax a copy of the staff report OOwNer [0 REPRESENTATIVE

I will pick up a copy of the staff report at

the Community Development Department i R D) REPRESENTATIVE




LAKE 1OREST

CORPORATE OWNERSHIP (Exuiar A)

Please list the names and addresses of all officers and directors of the Corporation and all shareholders
who own individually or beneficially 5% or more of the outstanding stock of the corporation. In addition, this

application must be accompanied by a resolution of the Corporation authorizing the execution and
submittal of this application.

Name DianaR. Moore Trust dtd 6/15/1995| Name

Address 255 N. Mayflower Road, Lake Forest, IL 60045 Address

Ownership Percentage 100 % | Ownership Percentage %
Name Name

Address Address

Ownership Percentage

%

Ownership Percentage

%

Name

Address

Ownership Percentage

%

Name

Address

Ownership Percentage

%

Name Name

Address Address

Ownership Percentage % | Ownership Percentage %
Name Name

Address Address

Ownership Percentage % | Ownership Percentage %

Page 1of3



Dear Commissioners and Staff,

My wife Diana and | live at 255 North Mayflower Road. We would like to raze the existing structure at 261
North Mayflower, which is the property immediately to our north.

As some of you may know, | served on the Historic Preservation Commission for five years. | departed
one year early in order to serve three terms as an alderman on City Council. My wife Diana and | are the
current owners Little Orchard, Howard Van Doren Shaw’s first home in Lake Forest (completed one year
before Ragdale). We are supporters and advocates of historic preservation.

Since our purchase of Little Orchard in 2014, we have done a thorough restoration of the home. When
possible we’ve reused original building materials; when the original materials were not available we
commissioned artisans to hand-craft replacements. For example, the exterior soffit trim was hand made
in Idaho, and took three men four months to install, all while leveling the integrated gutter system as they
progressed around the house. We rebuilt all of the fireplaces and chimneys, reusing the original exterior
stones in their original locations. Siding repairs were made with hand-crafted replacement boards, as
the needed size and proportion is no longer available. In these and multiple other situations we have
sought to stay true to Shaw’s design and vision.

Our home is located nine feet from our north property line. As a lot-in-depth, that set-back should be a
minimum of 50 feet. When the property to the north became available, we seized on the opportunity to
center our home on a lot more respectful of being Shaw’s first residence in Lake Forest.

The existing home at 261 North Mayflower is approximately 35 ft from the bluff’s edge. Since 2015 when
we moved into 255, the bluff at 261 has sloughed twice, creating an extremely steep and precarious
condition. In contrast, we have reinforced and supported our bluff with extensive drainage
improvements, structural enhancements at top and bottom, as well as extensive improvements to our
beach infrastructure. If we are permitted to raze the 261 structure, we intend to stabilize the bluff with a
decreased pitch and engineered support.

The table tand of the parcel will resemble what we have created in our current yard. Turf will be replaced
with trees, prairie and native perennial species. Our driveway will be repositioned slightly to eliminate an
existing blind-spot. Most of the plant material disturbed by the driveway shift will be transplanted or
replaced. There will be minimalimpact on existing trees, other than trimming and the removal of
unhealthy or dead specimens.

We hope you will approve this project to reverse an unfortunate previous subdivision. Little Orchard
deserves a more fitting setting, to honor Shaw as one of Lake Forest’s leading citizens.

Sincerely,

David L Moore



T e — L L

A P ey 1 Aty g { i
i -..gl[ _ . ..
oS S e R i / H
Avttnen - sty L]
i v X ! e 2978 JusUIN90) “ '
ot L s 4t i (ogay “5 srqom0 pepict ‘iz z w7 !
oo e ng anbung P a R
ot vz antry s P e L e uoreIIpa
1%88y ooy xeeg poors . u.ll:bl m."l.m’.unlrul H Pt I.urlnlilmnlnllmpu
YEIY-n-g) 8N Wt s far b Aema RO o ear = v =
—l b ial Wt
o rrvecy ~ '+ -
" aouTp T, lrsey exwy M
oY uaiBuA0) 1y eBioeg H
forme 1oy I
NIVW3Y oL 3woH OlHOLSIH H

a4 H3IMOT4AVYIN N §4¢

o ﬁuaniwkﬁmnhhm.r/ .
1 et (s
. -« % I6- R Y . V5. - S .
g .m,_ n:.u,..n“. TN NBETANG M, (=R ts i) -
\ v & RSN UOWOIS = £ -
i uormarpns s g ) Fen 8 B/ ,#wm i
I : coaph: T -/ T SEN R e
. .__ I..l..l L) VAR b~ ot Z A VG
& i S .

.—__ S
_— .‘

ToramerE N W AN W\n WShbewEY L, o—

i NV P - U VA O 77/« 27t A oS

Rt o o

NVYOIHOIN
INVT

gaHsSnow3a 3g 0L 3INWOH s i

TN U3 8yt vp DN e bt saled g
J4AYW N 192 somroon s DR o et e chanie s 19103 1 P i s
ad mm\so b e o 18 3o carle = e B8 0 XA W8 0
BAYITLIT DO R, D PM3) W s WA
s, reor e N 22701 1309 ST Shonugus 1 $30s0p 1f WS AT
00—t opag Fokipnl =l o ) by 1 10 4wy gy L8 U0 Ooeng poous) Y  cF o s
o -t ey 8y, KR ARAINBION RO Fre 72 1ok 22y by
300u wrua pheaea -pita 16 porsis Sk 5p Santp ALETLI0 Mo i kg s o pbins
ﬂ_-; T
LB v vy
H TR L) IV TRL T RO 52 T1FT 5
sy o0y ¥ voacaog 0 sy Ao yet Ty
P
m ’ gm ‘H Q a a
§ ST i




CITY OF LAKE FOREST
HISTORIC RESOURCE EVALUATION
261 N. Mayflower Road, Lake Forest

—o¥ 0

261 N. Mayflower Road: 1952-

261 N. Mayflower Road: Ca. 1890-1951; photo
published, Inland Architect, 1899

3] BENJAMIN

| HISTORIC =" CERTIFICATIONS
March 8, 2024




il <ol

i':l . ' - i ;
arth View, March 4, 2024

261 N. Mayflower Road, E

Executive Summary

The house at 261 N. Mayflower that was built ca. 1890 and designed by Arthur Heun had
considerable historical significance because of its association with important early Lake Forest
families. That house had a rich history of life on the property associated with the McGenniss and
Ryerson families. It also had significance as an example of Shingle Style architecture. There
were few Shingle Style houses built on the North Shore, including Lake Forest, because shingled
residences were commonly built in seaside, resort communities on the east coast or inland east
coast cities, including Boston and Lenox Massachusetts, by prominent architects such as
McKim, Meade & White and Henry Hobson Richardson. The house at 261 N. Mayflower
received early recognition. Captioned “The Residence of Mrs. Charles Burrall McGenniss, Lake
Forest Illinois, Arthur Heun, Architect, Chicago”, the photograph of the house illustrated in this
report was published in Volume 33, No. 6, July, 1899, of The Inland Architect and News Record,
a significant early architectural journal. Unfortunately, there is nothing left of the house that was
published as a reminder of the building’s historical and architectural significance.

The house as remodeled in 1951-2, with non-historic alterations made in 1988, is a time piece
but not a fine example of architecture of the period. It is quirky but not significant for design
consistency in scale and materials. Although deserving of a report to document its long and
interesting story, the house’s rich history took place earlier than 1952, and its architecture was
far more significant before its remodeling.




History of the Property

The building at 261 N. Mayflower Road was an extensive remodeling of the Shingle Style house
designed by Arthur Heun for Isabelle Corwith (“Bombie”) and Charles B. McGenniss.! In 1951-
52, architect Herman Lackner was hired to transform the house. His client was Bombie’s
daughter, Mrs. Donald Ryerson, who is believed to have lived in the house since her marriage in
1911.

261 N. Mayflower Road? was part of the McGenniss Baker subdivision that was recorded on
April 24, 1902. In 1978, the property upon which 261 Mayflower Road was situated was divided
into two lots: Lot 1, which includes the main house, located at 261 N. Mayflower Road, and Lot
2. This created the Peter G. Danis subdivision.’

The 261 N. Mayflower property has an interesting history tied to several prominent Lake Forest

families. Anthony (“Tony”) Ryerson, who grew up at 261 N. Mayflower, detailed the history of

the property in a memoir written in 1999 that is located in the collection of the History Center of
Lake Forest-Lake Bluff.*

The story begins with the four Corwith sisters who were daughters of Chicago real estate
investor Henry Corwith (1820 — 1880) and Isabelle Soulard (1828 — 1922). They all lived along
the lakefront in Lake Forest, on or very near N. Mayflower Road. They were:

e Mary Corwith Baker, who married Alfred L. Baker, and who lived at “Little Orchard,”
255 Mayflower Road, designed in 1898 by Howard Van Doren Shaw;

e Antoinette Corwith Dangler, who married Charles Dangler and was mother of architect
Henry Dangler, who partnered with David Adler (until Dangler’s untimely death in 1917,
and with whom Ambrose Cramer worked). Antoinette lived at “Fairmore,” 77 N. Stone
Gate Road, designed by Alfred Granger c. 1900 and 1928, with renovations by Roy
Binkley;

e Eliza Corwith Hamill, married to Ernest Hamill, who lived at “Ballyatwood,” 433 N.
Mayflower Road, built in 1906 and designed by Spencer & Powers.

o Isabelle “Bombie” Corwith McGenniss Cramer (1861 — 1954). She and her first husband
built 261 Mayflower.

! The photo of the 1899 Shingle Style House is from the Lake Forest Preservation Foundation 112 Annual Historic
Preservation Awards. It is the same photograph that was published in The Inland Architect and News Letter.

2261 Mayflower was a three-story shingled house designed by Arthur Heun Ca. 1890, and re-designed by architect
Herman Lackner in 1951. Today, 261 Mayflower generally retains the appearance from the 1951 design.

3261 Mayflower Road, City of Lake Forest Permit dated April 14, 1980.

4 Anthony M. Ryerson, Humorous Hubbub: Memoirs of Anthony Mitchell Ryerson, as told to Margo Giffin Ryerson,
privately published (1999).



Isabelle Corwith (“Bombie”) was born in 1861 in Galena, Illinois, and married Charles B.
McGenniss (1858 — 1891) on January 12, 1888. The couple built the original shingle-style house
at 261 Mayflower Road that was designed by Arthur Heun. They had a daughter named Isabelle
McGenniss (1888 — 1976). After Charles B. McGenniss died in 1891, Bombie Corwith
McGenniss married businessman and banker Ambrose Cramer, Sr. (1857 - 1927).

Ambrose Cramer, Sr. was previously married to a woman named Susan Skinner (died in 1898)
and they had two children: Elizabeth and Ambrose, Jr. (1891 — 1970). Ambrose Cramer, Jr. grew
up to be a distinguished architect who, before opening his own practice, trained under and
worked for Henry Dangler and David Adler. Ambrose, Jr, remodeled 259 Mayflower Road that
was built as stables for 261 Mayflower. Called “Monoxide Towers”, (a humorous reference to
carbon monoxide produced by automobiles) it served as the Isabelle McGenniss Ryerson
Garage and Residence. This building, which was located on Lot 2 in the Peter G. Danis
subdivision, has been demolished.’

When Ambrose Cramer, Str. and Bombie married they bult and moved into Rathmore, 57
Stonegate Road, (designed in 1896 by F.W. Stickney), along with Ambrose’s children Elizabeth

5 A Historic Resource Evaluation was written by Benjamin Historic Certifications before the building was
demolished.



and Ambrose Cramer Jr., and Bombie’s daughter Isabelle McGenniss.® Ambrose Cramer, Jr. and
Isabelle McGenniss grew up together.

After Bombie and Ambrose Cramer Sr. moved to Rathmore, the house at 261 Mayflower Road
was rented to the Ferry family, possibly the children of Abby Farwell Ferry of Lake Road.’
Bombie gave the house at 261 Mayflower to her daughter, Isabelle McGenniss, probably around
the time of her daughter’s October, 1911, wedding to Donald M. Ryerson (1884 — 1932).

Isabelle Corwith McGenniss (“Bombie”) Cramer, Isabelle McGenniss, Isabelle Corwith
ca. 1891, Ryerson Memoirs

Donald Ryerson was the grandson of Joseph T. Ryerson (1813-1883), founder of the Joseph T.
Ryerson & Son, Inc. steel company, and the son of Edward L. Ryerson Sr. (1854 — 1928). Upon
the death of Edward L. Ryerson Sr., his sons Edward L. Ryerson, Jr., Joseph, and Donald
assumed leadership of the company, known by then as J.T. Ryerson & Son, Inc. In 1935, the
business merged with Inland Steel Corporation. During the 1950s, Inland Steel was among the
ten largest steel companies in the United States.®

6 Kim Coventry, Daniel Meyer and Arthur H. Miller. Classic Country Estates of Lake Foresta, Architecture and
Landscape Design, 1856-1940. New York: W. W. Norton & Company 2003,86,88.

7 Art Miller, “McGenniss/Ryerson/La Place Residence, 261 Mayflower Road,” 2016; rev. August 4, 2019.
Unpublished.

8 “Inland Steel,” Encyclopedia of Chicago, http://www.encyclopedia.chicagohistory.org/pages/642.html, accessed
March 1, 2024.



Donald and Isabelle Ryerson had three children: Donald Ryerson, Jr., who died in infancy, a
daughter Isabelle Joan (Brewster), and a son Anthony (“Tony”) Mitchell Ryerson (1918 —2002).
Donald Ryerson, Sr. died in 1932. His wife Isabelle continued to live at 261 Mayflower after his
death. During the 1930s there were a few changes to the house, but nothing extensive. On March
16, 1936, a permit was taken out to alter and add to “an old frame residence.” In 1951, she hired
local architect Herman Lackner to radically change the house, re-designing the interior and
exterior of 261 Mayflower Road.

261 N. Mayflower Road, after 1951 renovations by Herman Lackner. 1995 Photo. Ryerson
Memoirs.

Tony Ryerson served in World War I1. During that time, his wife Dusa Ryerson and their infant
daughter Sheila lived in Monoxide Towers. When Tony was discharged from the service,
sometime in 1945 but prior to the end of the war, he returned to Monoxide Towers. Because
Dusa was expecting another child and their family was growing beyond the space provided by
the little coach house, Tony and Dusa “switched houses” with his mother. Tony Ryerson and his
family moved into the larger, original house at 261 Mayflower, and Isabelle moved into

? Building Permit 562, 3/16/36. Community Development Department, City of Lake Forest



Monoxide Towers. At some point, Isabelle Ryerson’s mother Isabelle Cramer was no longer
happy living in the very large Rathmore estate, and she moved into Monoxide Towers to be with

her daughter.

Isabelle Ryerson, ca 1910 Anthony (“Tony” M. Ryerson,
Ryerson Memoirs 1988, Ryerson Memoirs

While Tony Ryerson and his wife were living in 261 Mayflower Road, they purchased five acres
from the property next door and built a new contemporary house at 263 Mayflower Road,
designed by architect Charles Dornbusch, permitted in 1947 and completed in 1950. Tony and
his family moved into the new house and his mother Isabelle—Mrs. Donald Ryerson--and her
mother Isabelle Cramer moved back into the main house at 261 Mayflower.'

10 1t was in 1951 that architect Herman Lackner remodeled the interior and exterior of 261 Mayflower Road.



263 N. Mayflower Road, built 1950. Anthony Ryerson House, Ryerson Memoirs.

The major remodeling of the house at 261 Mayflower took place in 1951-52, likely when Mrs.
Ryerson and her mother were preparing to move into 261 and Tony Ryerson moved into his new
home at 263 Mayflower designed by Charles Dornbusch. The alterations to 261 Mayflower
totally transformed the Shingle Style house designed by Arthur Heun. The cost of the remodel
by Herman Lackner was estimated at $80,000. In 1924 dollars that equals $926,000."!

72 b3 The City of Lake Forest Permit No 3602 :
et Agnd 0 UILDING PERMIT LRV el Pt T YL
,
PERI oy 16 Heisy Grantsn T }‘// /Y/?’-( '}[‘f to construct
AL GTON TS 7470/ é Boilding on . Lot Blnck
sie. GHR & [AGENS \uazi &4,7 //&z,rz:wz‘rf
i Q\ Storiez é E'n"n 2
Dimenstows of Butiding Owner
Fron ——— e j //gerfa( i
Width. — ~~—- | Estimated Cost including besting _u«l pluzainng §
Hutgor 7 ‘Phiz by Mm.a (s not) mm

Bath
Lev

> Limi d ~f S
77 meﬂ/g\ é}&"é

¢ . /ﬂf 0/{ &
weid i -

t J(.-v FepAtr ex.

e ::.{
:-Z‘ 3 3
Laundry Taba

. o . CITY cr m&z EORESE u 1 ans greias, ity for o kind of

Floor Drains.
,..;L\\ patzd above, b 1 £
Weated by £ 00| g A i T B 1.,:5—:“- e &mnﬂ’

Lighted bvﬂtf{]&[}f" s prdt mey be revoked at asy time -s,mm /T bt
Na. of Plave. £ Pt 1/ /
Speeitientiong ved h"ﬁ{; RN ‘-1 4‘ w uf/) /74
That Plan . %; Aop Huiiding Herait G Commisicn w
Favws 32 0 DO o &

and Toapection

11 Amortization Schedule Calculator, https://www.loanamortizationschedule.org/inflation/80000/1952/. Accessed
March 1, 2024. This is based on information from the Bureau of Labor Statistics to calculate how much the
value of a dollar has changed every year, adjusted for inflation.



A realtor’s card found at the History Center of Lake Forest-Lake Bluff, dated January 28, 1977
includes a hand-written notation indicating that 261 Mayflower sold on May 11, 1977. The
property included the coach house.'? The new owner of the property was Peter G. Danis. In
1977, Danis subdivided the property into Lot 1 and Lot 2: 261 and 25913

In 1988, the property at 261 Mayflower (Lot 1) was sold to Desmond R. LaPlace (1931-2023), a
prominent and successful businessman who retired as Vice Chairman of ACCO Brands in
1996.14 ACCO World Corp was a Northbrook-based maker of office supplies when he was
named vice president in 1987. Its operations in the United States, Canada, Britain, Ireland and
the Netherlands made fasteners, paper clips, binders and punchers. That same year it was
acquired by Connecticut-based holding company American Brands.!> He held both
undergraduate and graduate degrees from Harvard University. In 1956 he married Jeanne
Bernier (born 1930). They were married 62 years. She passed away in 1918.'¢

12 January 28, 1977 Realtor Card, Lake Forest-Lake Bluff History Center.

13 Plat of Subdivision dated July 28, 1977. Lake County Recorder of Deeds

14 Death Notice: Desmond LaPlace, Chicago Tribune, Oct 13, 2023, ProQuest. Accessed Web. 5 Mar. 2024 .

15 «People,” Chicago Tribune, Feb 9, 1987; C18.

16 Death Notice: Jeanne LaPlace. Chicago Tribune, Apr 08 2018, p. 34. ProQuest. Accessed Web. 5 Mar. 2024,



Architecture

The Ca. 1890 House

The Isabelle Corwith (“Bombie”) and Charles B. McGenniss House designed by Arthur Heun,
Ca. 1890, was an excellent example of Shingle Style architecture. Popular between the Mid
1870s and the early 1900s, the style describes a wood frame building with facades sheathed in
wood shingles. Shingle Style houses were broad horizontal structures that blended into the
natural surroundings, appearing to hug the ground. Porches, balconies and large window
openings were common, as they were in Queen Anne houses, but these homes were simple,
without the huge variety of picturesque features that characterize the Queen Anne style. They
expressed an informality and eclecticism that has been described as a “clear example of

American individualism.”!’

The style developed in New England and was particularly popular in seaside resorts like
Newport, Rhode Island, or Manchester by the Sea, Massachusetts.'® Particularly eloquent
Newport examples include the Isaac Bell House (1882) by McKim Meade & White and the
William Watts Sherman House (1875-76) by Henry Hopson Richardson. “Kragsyde” in
Manchester by the Sea (1883-1885) by Peabody and Stearns, sadly, was demolished in 1929,
Shingle Style house also were built far from the coast—in Washington, D.C (the Crounse House,
1897, by Appleton P. Clark); in Detroit, Michigan, (the Charles Lang Freer House, 1890, by
Wison Eyre); and in Stockbridge, Massachusetts (‘“Naumkeag” the Joseph Hodges Choate
House, 1885, by Stanford White). There are actually very few Shingle Style houses on
Chicago’s North Shore. An enclave was built in Winnetka along Prospect Avenue and only one
with integrity remains. In Oak Park, Frank Lloyd Wright’s studio, 1889, is wrapped in Shingles.
In Lake Forest, the First Presbyterian Church, 1886 by Charles Sumner Frost, is a beautiful
example of shingle style architecture.

The term Shingle Style was coined and defined by Yale professor Vincent J. Scully, Jr. in 1955,
when he wrote, The Shingle Style and The Stick Style: Architectural Theory and Design from
Downing to the Origins of Wright.*® It has since been used to describe the many beautifully
detailed shingled houses built from the 1880s to approximately 1900 located primarily on the
east coast, but also throughout the country. Houses sheathed in shingles were built earlier in
seaside towns in Cape Cod or Nantucket. The style has enjoyed a revival over the last several

Accessed March 1, 2024

18 Numerous 1880s examples were illustrated in Sheldon’s 4rtistic Country-Seats (Artistic Country-Seats: Types of
Recent American Villa and Cottage Architecture with Instances of Country Club-Houses, by George William
Sheldon, published by D. Appleton and Co., New York, in 1886-87.) which was reprinted as American Country
Houses of the Gilded Age, with new text by Amold Lewis, The College of Wooster, Wooster, Ohio. New York:
Dover Publications, Inc.1982

19 Vincent J. Scully, Jr. The Shingle Style and the Stick Style: Architectural Theory and Design from Downing to the
Origins of Wright. New Haven and London: Yale University Press, 1955.



years, especially for casual large beach houses built in the Hamptons.?® Scully’s book is
profusely illustrated. with photos and engravings. All of the plates date from the late 1870s
through the 1880s.

Arthur Heun

Architect Arthur Heun, who designed 261 N. Mayflower, was regarded as a highly distinguished
architect. His Chicago Tribune obituary was titled, “Arthur Heun, 79, Noted Designer of Homes,
Dead: Built Many De Luxe Country Places.”. Its first paragraph stated that the noted architect
«...designed some of the most beautiful homes in Chicago and Lake Forest and built fashionable
country houses”. 2! His obituary also appeared in The New York Times.”?

Heun was born in Saginaw, Michigan in July, 1866. He was trained in architecture under an
uncle, Vollusin Bude, in practice in Grand Rapids, Michigan. His first job, when he was age 21,
was in the Chicago office of Frank Whitehouse. While in this office he assisted in planning three
homes—for Col. J. Mason Lomis, for Barbara Armour, and for General A. C. McClurg. When
Whitehouse left Chicago and moved east in 1893, Heun took over White’s clientele and
established his own reputation. He made contacts with many of Chicago’s most progressive and,
today most highly respected architects. Although Heun did not have an office in Steinway Hall,
built in 1896 at 64 E. Van Buren, (demolished) where Frank Lloyd Wright, Dwight Perkins,
Robert Spencer, and Pond & Pond had offices, he often spent time with these progressive
designers.

Heun’s practice was largely residential though he was adroit in various styles, including Shingle
Style, French Eclectic, Tudor Revival and Art Deco. One of his first jobs was remodeling the
Prairie Avenue home of Armour executive Arthur Meeker. He later designed their famous
country house Arcady Farm (1907) as well as Melody Farm (1908), the country place of Mrs. J.
Ogden Armour. At Long Lake, near Traverse City, Michigan, he built “The Timbers,” Mrs.
Armour’s summer home. In Highland Park, he designed a Georgian Revival home for Ernest
Loeb at 1425 Waverly. He also designed “Castle Farms”, a French Norman summer estate on the
1600-acre farm property in Charlevoix, Michigan, owned by Albert Loeb, a vice president of
Sears, Roebuck & Company. It is listed on the National Register of Historic Places. The 1919
house Heun designed for E. Lichtstern, which was inspired by Italian architecture and Prairie
Style houses and located in South Deere Park, is also listed on the Register. The grand Tudor
Revival house Heun designed for banker and president of the Missouri Southern Railroad
Company Frank Deming Stout at 3150 Sheridan Road has been demolished and replaced by an
apartment building. The William McCormick Blair House at 1416 Astor Street is still standing.
Although his practice was mainly residential, Heun designed the Casino at 195 East Delaware,

20 Cedar shingles oxidize to a silver grey. This protects them from the elements and is particularly suitable for
houses built by the sea in Nantucket, the coastal towns of Long Island or Cape Cod.

21 « Arthur Heun, 79, Noted Designer of Homes, Dead: Built Many De Luxe Country Places,” Chicago Tribune, Jane
21,1946, 18.

22 “Chicago Architect Built Homes for Leaders in Society”, The New York Times, Special to the New York Times,
June 20, 1946,17. Accessed March 1, 2024 from Newspapers.com



one of Chicago’s most glorious Art Deco interiors. In his later years, Heun became a painter. At
the time of his death, Heun lived in Chicago at 200 E. Pearson.

1951-52 Remodel of the House

February 15, 1952, Mrs. D. W. Ryerson took out a building permit for replacement of 2 floors
and 6-1/2 bedrooms. The architect was H. H. Lackner.”?

The City of Lake Forest Permit No.. 3602

Fee sx(‘«iﬁ,Z;amm BUILDING PERMIT Date CIAH T AL 19l
; 8810 18 HEREBY GRANTED TO. . /}7’?” ZR}

i??ﬁf FION S f ﬂé’f 0 ﬂdmg on ' Lnt " — . Bloe

Subd.. IHILK /‘Zf?ézﬁ/\éﬂ«fm N Z —Strest VP & aﬁﬂ'-’-‘/f_fé;_

OlE= . Swries /4 — 1) — Attic._.‘ s M,._,Baaement

‘é(&" /V[f’ to construet

Dimenmona of Building « Ohamner 7 '-'-} -BZ-‘Y .ZE..‘ [ ATLELTCN ;
e s / /Ma gf'zz__...._
il hf e | Higtimated Cost including henting and plumbmg 3;~ S5 S
B:ti 5 This building (% {is not) in the Limits, and §
— £ LGIILY a/‘c NG
;a_‘vl’a::mﬂw ; Class § ) &30 . ( N Zore. SLPENCE
oilets.. .. L. This pe gramted Jpon the s condition that ssdd
iamktth;.‘nbf.nm —— ‘%.z : wmf e to construct, alter, repRir of ...
un W e
Floor Draing. e o “I;Eg)‘ QF Mﬁ i&gﬂﬁ?ﬁo ke said Jnslding and preasiso, only for the kind of
4l ot eomplistice i Zoning rdinance,
Heated by €417 Ae_ m&wﬂaum &% the ity of Lake Vegeete ;
Lighted by M ff‘ﬁj‘r f This %ﬁ may be revoked at any time upon,vlo!suo ot any
No. of Plans _ / SeRABS 4
Specifieations__.__.____ | Received oﬂm )2? Qlll:rﬁﬁ’q‘éé’b ... = é’
Plat PL 6 ; Pf o commmiongr of Pdblic ’Warki
t Plan . . — | & ; ....... _for Bifiding Permit
Form 57— 50-12REZ5) N snd Inspection 4

23 Building Permit 3602, September 28, 1951; Building permit 1591, 2/15/52. Community Development
Department, City of Lake Forest.



7t tn tea pina SBeTions mur mitted wikk thin sy mttas,

0 e Work cumbampiabad, 1 tudicg g 5e raile mia] B SONTIONG Wrk ety i s nervgl
u 580,000,200 [
7 ¥R W conbmaz nf My Nuliing or sllaratoz ja . BT, 000
Thi etiumts w mede by, HBIWAD H. lacynar AT
bes ras v fose, Muttce, Iiiusia | o b

gk, dinctien, I-an 218 - 53k v
asli L. yecsan i e
nefoosey Itose, Iage sergas = 7 oact
\ e . - l“r,m-;-t Lot e &
Aplicatiin i3 &b mmde for g Cwrlibisle of T P
ekt 10 b pmusd atiey the plbar Ly ,ﬁ‘m:. Ly L 1B preemises ax wMTS 0 fomh, i
nlrlar:-“ﬂl:l%r._._n e T & Of Depane; Sl 1 o1 We hurliy Sgtee b Goiatrt,
i b of wrtapancy demynatal Bbok. dn Arire 80/l ase 1th Coe oo DN A permice, iy £
G 0.3 Tl Tigulatiors ot the Gy uf Lot Fovant " 2 (3¢ provisicg f the Zening Omitecsre, Waratng

Adfncs f%a

Too : .
appllinct bavieg reud haix and fukiy undg day U ek Bieveed doelsnd 1941 the Katasugin
SR RGO KL 0 Phe Dol of Lo, itawiedEe R belbd
space deman o cackmare

LT (N g
adgtrew  2<e Sresn b Baac, Windetis, Fil.
MOTE. Asampanyinyg ltas apslicitlos 29 « piac, b dupls u Ao, ] T i
e G e e AT
B dnoen o1 B 3 195 i, Do NVI gtd 35d powes setnen and taivphone serice. The = .
- B8 Providnd ke a1 complela delale ean he alun o0 by e dmaiy
Butichog Permit M. S mued — 1%

Cerfiine & Ovypsper Moo Tasten] ‘
] -— 15
-4

Herman H. Lackner’s remodel of 261 N. Mayflower Road left no remnant of Heun’s handsome
and architecturally significant Shingle Style house. He created a Colonial Revival house with a

small temple front located around the front entrance.

After the 1876 Centennial Exposition in Philadelphia, Colonial Revival became a kind of
national style. The country’s 1876 centennial celebrations awakened an interest in America’s
Colonial architectural heritage. Even before 1876, the demolition of the celebrated John Hancock
House in 1863 shocked the county. The nationalism and patriotism that grew out of these events
created a movement that had a profound effect on all aspects of American culture through World
War IT and into the 1950s. This wave of nostalgia was immediately reflected in American

architecture.

Features of Colonial Revival architecture include rectangular form, symmetry, gable or hip roofs
(frequently with dormers), shingles and/or clapboard siding, double-hung windows with
multipane glazing, shutters, bay windows, paneled doors topped by transoms, fanlights or



pediments and (sometimes) flanked by sidelights. Classical elements including cornices with
modillions and dentils, balustrades, columns, and pilasters are also common. Many Colonial
Revival houses have small front porches with columns supporting a pedimented roof or
balustrade.

Lackner’s interpretation of Colonial architecture incorporated symmetry, double-hung windows
flanked by shutters and a front porch that is a translation of a temple front, with four round Doric
columns visually supporting a pediment. On the interior classical details abound, although it is
unclear if they date from 1951-2 or later. What sets this house apart from earlier houses inspired
by America’s Colonial past is the scale. The entrance is oversize, with transom windows larger
than would be found in earlier graceful Colonial Revival Houses. These elements are bigger and
bolder than the home’s double hung windows. The brick has ragged surfaces and looks like it
might have been sandblasted. The house lacks a sense of design consistency in its interpretation
of Colonial Revival architecture.

Herman Lackner

Herman Herbert Lackner was born in Evanston, Illinois, on June 20, 1912. He attended North
Shore Country Day School, Harvard College from 1930 — 1932, and the Armour Institute (now
the Illinois Institute of Technology) from 1934 — 1936. He traveled throughout Europe and when
he returned home, he worked for architect Chester Walcott during the summers of 1930 and
1931. He then was a draftsman for General Houses, Inc. (the firm run by Howard Fisher, who
designed a steel house for Adlai Stevenson), from 1933 — 1940, and worked for Holabird & Root
from 1940 — 1942. He was in the Seabees (construction battalions) organized by the United
States Navy to build bases on Pacific islands during World War II, from 1943 — 1945. Once the
war was over, he formed his own firm in 1945, working for 53 years until he retired in 1998.



This s 1o Qertify
HERMAN i HERBERT LACKNER

i zl:"dy}y regist_éred_
- b L= T

!

Herman Lackner’s registration certificate, July, 1938.%

Most of Lackner’s work was residential; he concentrated on updating historic North Shore
homes, many designed by noted architects ,or designed new homes. Lackner’s designs for
remodeling older homes were published in the journals The American Home in September of
1948 and August of 1960, as well as Popular Home, late Spring of 1951. He was a member of
the Chicago Chapter of the American Institute of Architects, the Arts Club of Chicago, and the
Chicago Literary Club. 25 He died on June 24, 1998 in Evanston.?

24 {Jerman Lackner Archive. Winnetka Historical Society.

25 American Architects Directory, R.R. Bowker, 1962.

2% “Herman Lackner, Winnetka Architect, ” Chicago Tribune, June 28, 1998; “H. Lackner, Winnetka Architect,”
Winnetka Talk, July 2, 1998; Barbara Brotman, “Club Survives During a Dark Age for Renaissance Men,” Chicago
Tribune, October 28, 1987.



Remodeling in magazine by Herman Lackner?’

Herman Lackner relaxes in the solar home he designed and b.uil’( in Winnetka, l.adu!er is &
well-known North Shore arghitect, with a reputation for the quality of his home renovations.

Herman Lackner in his Winnetka homé (demoli;héd .is

27 “Homes from the Most Unlikely Houses.” The American Home, September 1960; 78-79. Herman Lackner
Archive, Winnetka Historical Society.

28 Bd Caltahan, “Renowned architect leaves home town,” Winnetka Talk, February 26, 1998; 7.y



Alterations of House after 1952 Design by Herman Lackner

Changes Made by Peter G. Danis in 1977 upon his Purchase of the Property:

When the property at 261 Mayflower was sold on May 11, 1977, to Peter G. Danis, he took out
a permit to raze and erect a 32° x 22’ frame garage. It was built by Danley Lumber Company. No
architect was listed on the permit.

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST

Application for Building Permit
‘ ) to Alter, Repair, Install or Raze

Ome September 29, 1978 g

HEATING CCHTRACTOR.. B : -




Changes made by Desmond La Place after his Purchase of the Property in
1988

In 1988, when 261 Mayflower was sold to Desmond LaPlace, he engaged architect Duane
Dickey, who worked with Richard Kendler, to make minor changes that included a breezeway
to the 3-car garage and a bay window. Dickey opened his own architectural design firm,
Krueger-Dickey, with Robert C. Krueger. They had what is known today as a design-build
practice. Robert C. Kreuger, known as Jim, worked as a general contractor for custom-built
homes on the North Shore, eventually opening his own architectural design firm, Krueger-
Dickey, Inc.?’

Desmond and Jeanne LaPlace took out permits for interior work in 1988. Permit 20977, dated
6/3/88 was to “demo interior as per plan”. Permit 21093, dated 8/10/88, was to remodel the
kitchen and baths. Permit 21211, dated 9/26/88, was to replace a wood deck. All of these permits
were signed by D. E. Dickey.*° Permit 21194 was to add a breezeway and bay window.

29 Obituary, “Robert Krueger”, ca September 1, 2009 . Newspapers.com.
30 Permits 20977, 21093, 21211, 21174. Community Development Department, City of Lake Forest.



FERMIT NG,
FERMIT TEE, .
PLAN REVIEW FEB.,
FUBLIC PROP, BOND.

"‘;.“lApplication for Building Permit

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST

to Alter, Repair, Install or Ragze

DRAINAGR...ocnvrieninannnnen,,
OTHER.\. suurvmrenrsisnennennn . Date...._August 10 1058
to, (NDERSIGNED Do Bl Dickey, Architeer, o oby applies to The Gity of
Lake Forest, Ilinois, for a permit to alter, Repadr, Insiadl, Roze, a single fomily, commersial, cuxiticry
buiiding or sign at 261 Mayflower Road, Leke Forest, T1l. 60045

Address e
QWNED BY Desmond and Jeanne Lallace Phose 295m4851___"
DESCRIPTION OF WORK. Addition of breezeway and bay window
8. 47:000:00 ic the toxd cost of the work, including all trades.

Krueger/ Dickey, Inc.

GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

ADDRESS.........3806 Foster Street

ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR.

Evanshon _PHONE__673-5644

MM _Electric Co.

7231 Hastirgs Ln, Buffalo Grove _FHONE__520-204C

E ADDRESS,
PLUMBING CONTRACTOR. Seminetta Plumbing Co.
ADDRESS, 2802 W._ Wileggn, Chicage pHONE, _ 286-3102
HEATING CONTRACTOR To ke let
ADDRESS. PHONE.

ARCHITECT.

D. E. Dickev

ADDRESS

3126  wra1Ae r o resn




IE CITY OF LAKE FOREST. ILLINOIS g.)
N?

BUILDING PERMIT 21174
DB .ot I9.........
repair
ad ... DA ckey, INCan e S .construct
Contractur Qwner - Agent msmu
alter

[ Conatruction

Estimated cost of work including all trades $..
Other Permits required -~ Elect. ] Heating [] Plumb. {]
San. Sewer [ Storm Sewer [ St, Opening []

Private Sewage (]

Bonds required — Street Opening [J Driveway [ Public [J
This buﬂdmg {is) (is not) in the Fire Limits, and isto be & CIa.ss

buﬂdmg used as a..... R R SN TS
Znne

This pemut is grunteri upon the express condition that said applicant agrees to
onstiyct, alter, or repair sald building in accordance with the Building Code. The
Jse of said building and premises shall be only for the kind of occcupancy specified
above, in strict compliance with the provisions of the Zoning Code and Health
regulations of The City of Lake Fore:st 5y
All work done under this permi 1 be subject to.ify ingbecHon and approval of

‘he Director of Building and Zcm' thojized fepfeSesbutive, °
" Direcighbl Butlding «nd Zontng

On July 7, 2020 Arthur Miller wrote an updated history of 261 N. Mayflower in which he
described work done during the time that Desmond La Place lived there. He notes that aluminum
siding over 1957 redwood siding may have been done under the Danis ownership from 1977-
1988. Dr. Miller also noted that the La Places had the landscape redesigned by Marvin Wehler of
the firm of Wehler and Peterson, formerly Lipp, Wehler and Peterson.>!

31 Arthur H. Miller. “McGenniss/Ryerson/La Place Residence, 261 North Mayflower Road, 1899, Arthur Heun,
architect”.August 4, 2019 manuscript in the collection of Susan Benjamin.



261 N. Mayflower (1952-2024)

0 53t e

oad
Plat of Survey, showing footprint of the house.*?

Although there are no plans or interior photographs of Heun’s original house, a rendered
floorplan drawn by Herman Lackner is located in the permit files; it accompanied building
permit 3602. This first floor drawing generally, although not exactly, reflects how the house is
laid out today.

32 Plat of Survey, n.d., Department of Community Development, City of Lake Forest



Herman Lackner’s floorplan drawing of the house.



Lallieis s T Tied wals thils apsdie |
'-Mﬂnipm&mmm“lmmm:umm
BE,000 L0 e e —

3

leArom & A CN X
. TumATCOL e Y

e Trbrpime 3L —us GH

\ THG vilusite ey HEIWES L. Lacupex i
Abirs 405 GOBEE ony G0AE, Fipaeben, Iilingis
Lonr- Lre, _Q_qg&l:: ::_'__‘?\1'5":-.& L] — i i e — 2 X
Addneag .g'é_'n_i_;_-Eflyf{D‘_Et{_,Jb'_l&_,.__Z_‘jﬁ_ fesesi e  Telgaesrd P 70 :l?
ASplioniden [ thw made fg g Cwrlificels of O2:upancy *o coeury ood um (Bt premivs ay wtome 3€ favh ld
cerlonts 1o Y amusd srier (e ompliclen aiw) scxepana: (2 1he broiidd] )
W pruuled o Permil appiof for mod « Cormitelle o Deospanc I fapes, 3 ar Wo burwly agtve 1o vustrodl 3 |
aller, el feeee L L —— 8l v 274 L ume moill Mulding aad premiace, Yoly T
1hy ddeij of acsupy=ar desiguatid ghove fs mricy DLt asos wath e proviskons of e Toainy Codinelos, MmNy
Code'and Heallh Mariintons of Sy Oy of LAKE Farest
Tor seplitars dnving wed taie appletion and faliy wrdersiatdag the TIEE Berend Joclareg taat the T
Iumd wre 4t T Bhe beat of L1, iiurwinZe and bajieg, _

spmares  Hexmon _f. Lackpees
iSlwapr o AySknaized Apran

Avtrom  Gsc Grexn er Poge, dieosies, Tii.
NOTE. Aeps iy 150 %) 0 44 3 pont, In duglseate, 4k3w 0 sxaie showing the §ofus) disBensions o7 Ly
et £ be BULL Spon. the sme of e bit, DG v, azd 1o ten o o Batidings, Vi Seattor o6 the xnitiry sever 1
phnrm waler diuia Wulke ferviee. fur mrvict, SEi and puwer serviee and Lol phane sepvtre, Thr mdd pisk el "
ded miwgonte Aod compliobe 924393 san be slown of bals sz driwing I

bt Bewwen oy 8157 2 137 phaet Pty
Bugiing: Perstit Me . femer Yl S |

Cortithonte of Desyprmay Np = . Jevac - AR
A

e

i’ermit associated with the drawing for the 1951-52 remodeling.



261 N. Mayflower Road, 2024

Garage connected to house by breezeway, at the north



]

Front Entrance, showing double doors and transom, brick faced walls with Doric columns
supporting triangular pediment.

Front Entrance Door



Brick wall of temple front



: e
South wing from the front, view east.

S

-

Southwest corner of house, view northeast.



Ty ¥4

ke
.m . ,‘:.]Pm.r

South facade, view northeast toward sun porch in southeast comer.



East Fagade, view northwest.

Center section, rear of house, View west.



BIBLIOGRAPHY

American Architects Directory, Edited by George S. Koyl, New York: R.R. Bowker Company,
1962.

American Country Houses of the Gilded Age, with new text by Arnold Lewis, The College of Wooster, Wooster,
Ohio. New York: Dover Publications, Inc.1982

Amortization Schedule Calculator,
https://www.loanamortizationschedule.org/inflation/80000/1952/. Accessed March 1, 2024.

“Arthur Heun, 79, Noted Designer of Homes, Dead: Built Many De Luxe Country Places”
Chicago Tribune, June 21, 1946, 18.

Brooks, H. Allen. The Prairie School.: Frank Lloyd Wright and his Midwest Contemporaries.
Toronto and Buffalo: The University of Toronto Press, 1972.

Brotman, Barbara. “Club Survives During a Dark Age for Renaissance Men.” Chicago Tribune,
October 28, 1987.

Callahan, Ed. “Renowned architect leaves home town.” Winnetka Talk, February 26, 1998; 7.

“Chicago Architect Built Homes for Leaders in Society”. The New York Times, Special to the
New York Times, June 20, 1946,17. Accessed March 1, 2024, from Newspapers.com

City of Lake Forest permits.

Coventry, Kim and Daniel Meyer and Arthur H. Miller. Classic Country Estates of Lake Foresta;
Architecture and Landscape Design, 1856-1940. New York: W. W. Norton & Company 2003

Death Notice: Desmond LaPlace, Chicago Tribune, Oct 13, 2023, ProQuest. Accessed Web. 5
Mar. 2024.

Death Notice: Jeanne LaPlace. Chicago Tribune, Apr 08, 2018, p. 34. ProQuest. Accessed Web.
5 Mar. 2024.

“H. Lackner, Winnetka Architect.” Winnetka Talk, July 2, 1998.
Herman Lackner Archive. Winnetka Historical Society.

“Herman Lackner, Winnetka Architect.” Chicago Tribune,” June 28, 1998.

“Homes from the Most Unlikely Houses.” The American Home, September 1960; 78-79.
Herman Lackner Archive, Winnetka Historical Society.

Miller, Arthur H. “McGenniss/Ryerson/La Place Residence, 261 North Mayflower Road, 1899,
Arthur Heun, architect”. August 4, 2019 manuscript in the collection of Susan Benjamin.



Obituary, “Robert Krueger”, ca September 1, 2009 . Newspapers.com accessed February 29,
2024.

Plat of Subdivision dated July 28, 1977.
“People,” Chicago Tribune, Feb 9, 1987; C18.
Realtor cards, Lake Forest Lake Bluff History Center.

Ryerson, Anthony M. Humorous Hubbub: Memoirs of Anthony Mitchell Ryerson, as told to
Margo Giffin Ryerson. Privately published (1999).

Scully, Vincent Jr. The Shingle Style and the Stick Style: Architectural Theory and Design from
Downing to the Origins of Wright. New Haven and London: Yale University Press, 1955.

Wentworth Studios. “Shingle Style (1880-1900)”.
https://www.wentworthstudio.com/historic-styles/shingle/ . Accessed March 1, 2024.




P JoMO[JARIA YHON SST Pue 197

$901) PAYSI[qeIsd 0)
renqgey Jojeur[jod pue
sreruudad ‘sqnuys ‘saax
AI0)SIOpUn dATIRU

ppe 03 ue[d Sunue[J




Meadow and pollinator habitat — no fertilizer, no pesticides, no irrigation




Seasonal blooms for pollinators




Turf removed for extensive beds under trees




Turf and plantings all maintained on organic program




Leaves in fall left on beds as natural mulch and soil builder




NATIVES PLANTED AT 255 AND SIMILAR PLANNED FOR 261

Acer freemanii
Amelanchier canadensis

Anemone canadensis
Anemone cylindrica
Aquilegia canadensis
Aronia melanocarpa
Asclepias incarnata
Asclepias tuberosa
Asimina triloba
Athyrium filix-femina
Baptisia australis
Bouteloua curtipendula

Carex appalachica
Carex pensylvanica
Carexrosea

Cercis canadensis
Chionanthus virginicus
Coreopsis lanceolata
Coreopsis palmata
Dalea purpurea
Dennstaedtia
punctilobula
Deschampsia cespitosa
Dodecatheon media
Dryopteris marginalis
Echinacea purpurea
Eragrostis spectabilis
Eupatorium maculatum
Eurybia macrophylla

Fothergilla

Geum triflorum
Hamamelis

Helenium autumnale
Heliopsis helianthoides
llex verticillata

Liatris pychnostachya
Liatris spicata
Mertensia virginica

Freeman's Maple
Serviceberry
Meadow
Anemone
Thimbleweed
Columbine
Chokeberry
Swamp Milkweed
Butterfly Weed
American Pawpaw
Lady Fern
Baptisia
Side-oats Grama

Appalachian Sedge
Oak Sedge

Rosy Sedge

Redbud

American Fringetree
Coreopsis

Coreopsis

Purple Prairie Clover

Hay-scented Fern
Tufted Hair Grass
Shooting Star
Wood Fern

Purple Coneflower
Purple Love Grass
Joe Pyeweed
Big-leaved aster

Fothergilla

Prairie Smoke
Witchhazel
Sneezeweed

False sunflower
Winterberry
Prairie Blazing Star
Liatris

Virginia Bluebells

Monarda bradburiana
Monarda fistulosa

Osmunda regalis
Panicum virgatum
Penstemon digitalis
Phlox divaricata
Podophyllum peltatum
Polemonium reptans

Polystichum acrostichoides
Pycnanthemum virginianum

Quercus muehlenbergii
Quercusd imbricaria

Ratibida pinnata

Rhus typhina

Rubus parviflorus
Rudbeckia fulgida
Rudbeckia hirta
Rudbeckia subtomentosa
Rudbeckia triloba
Schizachyrium scoparium

Silphium integrifolium
Silphium laciniatum
Solidago rigida
Solidago speciosa
Sorghastrum nutens
Sporobolis heterolepsis
Symphotrichum ericoides
Symphotrichum laeve
Symphotrichum novae-
angliae
Symphotrichum
oblongifolium
Symphotrichum shortii
Tiarella cordifolia
Uvularia grandiflora
Verbena hastata
Viburnum prunifolium
Viola pedata

Beebalm
Beebalm

Royal Fern
Switch Grass
Beardtongue
Woodland Phlox
Mayapple
Jacob's Ladder
Christmas Fern
Mountain Mint
Chinkapin Oak
Shingle Oak
Gray-headed
Coneflower
Staghorn Sumac
Thimbleberry
Black-eyed Susan
Black-eyed Susan
Black-eyed Susan
Brown-eyed Susan
Little Bluestem

Rosin Weed

Compass Plant
Stiff Goldenrod
Showy Goldenrod
Indian Grass
Prairie Dropseed
Heath Aster
Smooth Blue Aster

New England Aster

Aromatic Aster

Short's Aster
Foamflower
Merrybells
Ironweed

Blackhaw Viburnum
Bird's Foot Violet



Correspondence



Czerniak, Cathy

From: Bob Scales <rpscales@me.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 13, 2024 8:37 AM
To: Czerniak, Cathy

Cc: Diana Moore; David Moore

Subject: 261 North Mayflower Rd

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Verify the legitimacy of the email with the sender before
clicking links or opening attachments from unexpected sources.

Cathy

| am writing in response to the Notice you sent with respect to David and Diana Moore's’s proposal regarding 261
Mayflower. As you may recall, we live at 170 N Mayflower. Not only do we have no objection to this proposal, we
support it enthusiastically. We are confident that David and Diana will improve this property significantly; their plan is
extraordinary. We should all welcome their willingness to invest in our community, and their commitment to native
plants, stabilizing the bluff and preserving their historic home.

Please forward our comments to the Historic Preservation Commission.
Yours truly,

Bob Scales
Mary Keefe



Additional Information from Staff
Synthetic Roof Products
Staff Memo

Application Information Sheets
Significant Architects List

Correspondence

Historic Preservation Commission
March 20, 2024



LAKE FOREST

CIHHARTERED 1861

MEMORANDUM

To: Acting Chairman Hansen and members of the Historic Preservation
Commission

From: Catherine Czerniak, Director of Community Development
Abigail Vollimers, Senior Planner

Date: March 20, 2024

Subject: Presentation of Process for Evaluating Requests for Approval of
Synthetic Roofs in the Historic Districts and on Locally Landmarked
Structures

Background
The Commission considers new exterior materials and trends in design and

construction on an ongoing basis and has done so from the time the
Commission was established in 1998. The Commission’s purview and focus is on
the visual characteristics as evaluated based on the 17 Standards found in the
City Code. The Commission plays an essential role in preserving the overall
historic and distinctive character of Lake Forest while at the same time,
recognizing that Lake Forest is not a museum and that external factors, not
under the purview or control of the Commission, cannot be completely ignored.

Balancing various perspectives and the interests of multiple affected parties is
critical in managing the inevitable growth and change that the community has
experienced since its start and will continue to experience, with the desire to
preserve and protect what makes Lake Forest so special.

Consideration of Synthetic Roof Products by the Commission to Date

As noted above, since 1998, the Commission, after study and careful
deliberations, has shifted its position on various aspects of historic structures.
Most notably, the Commission now routinely accepts simulated true divided lite
windows instead of only frue divided lites, and the Commission approves the use
of synthetic siding that meets certain visual characteristics. Although the
Commission’s purview is on visual characteristics, we know that homeowners,
architects, builders, the City Council must factor in other considerations
including, but not limited to economic, product availability and changing
quality, insurability, and ongoing maintenance.

800 FIELD DRIVE * LAKE FOREST, ILLINOIS 60045 + TEL 847.234.2600 « www.CITYOFLAKEFOREST.COM



Page 2 of 5

The Commission has acknowledged that synthetic roof products have become
prevalent and are being promoted strongly by insurance companies, roofing
product vendors, roofing contractors, and importantly, are desired by some
homeowners. The Commission has also acknowledged that moving forward,
the synthetic products will likely continue to evolve. Given the momentum
behind synthetic roof products, the Commission has considered this topic over
the course of several months in an effort to develop parameters that could help
to mitigate the impact of synthetic roofs on the overall character of the City's
historic districts. The Commission has been clear that synthetic roof products are
not preferred and that the use of natural and traditional roof products is still
strongly recommended. However, the Commission has recognized that it has
an obligation to be responsive and to that end, based on the Commission’s
deliberations in recent months, and based on specific direction at the February
meeting, staff has detailed the process for review of requests to use synthetic
roof products on residences in the Historic Districts and on Local Landmarks.

In June 2023, the Commission held a workshop and viewed samples of a variety
of roofing materials and heard from a panel of architects who frequently work in
Historic Districts.

In August 2023, the Commission heard a request for a Certificate of
Appropriateness to allow the use of a synthetic roof product that is intended to
imitate wood, and voiced interest in taking additional time to study the issue.
The petition was denied after the petitioner requested Commission action rather
than a continuance. The Commission's denial was appedaled to the City
Council. The Council, while upholding the Commission’s decision, urged timely
consideration of synthetic roof products acknowledging the external factors
leading homeowners to consider the imitation product.

In early November 2023, Landmarks lllinois considered a request for a synthetic
product that is intended to imitate slate roof on a house in Lake Forest on which
Landmarks holds a Facade Easement. Although Landmarks lllinois’s decision
does not mandate that the City follow suit, it is an important decision by a
prominent preservation advocacy group in the State. The City has often looked
to Landmarks for advice and followed the lead of Landmarks.

In November 2023, the Commission held a workshop which took the form of a
bus tour to allow the Commission to together view on site installations of a wide
range of roof materials: natural cedar, slate, synthetic roof material that imitates
wood, synthetic material that imitates slate, asphalt shingles, clay tile, and metal
roofs. Importantly, the tour illustrated that throughout the community, within the
Historic Districts, and even within any given neighborhood, a mix of roof types
can be found. The tour also illustrated that synthetic roof products appear to
have improved over time and that there are various qualities and characteristics
of the synthetic products as well as different installation methods.



Page 3of 5

At the February 2024 Commission meeting, staff presented a recommended
process for evaluating requests for approval of synthetic roof products. The
Commission generally agreed that the parameters and submittal requirements
as presented are consistent with the Commission’s prior discussions,
deliberations, and input. The Commission recommended that all residences
associated with a Significant Architect be presented to the Commission for
review instead of distinguishing structures by the date of construction. The
process detailed below reflects the Commission’s comments.

A preliminary draft of the revised process was sent to the Lake Forest
Preservation Foundation on March 7, 2024, to allow time for review and
comment. The Foundation provided a memorandum in response to the draft.
The memorandum is included in the Commission's packet. The Foundation
suggested that all requests for synthetic roof products be considered by the
Historic Preservation Commission. It is important that the review process provide
for reasonable and efficient review of these types of requests. The Commission
can be most effective in this process by assuring that fair and appropriate
review criteria be established and that the most important historic residences
are brought forward for Commission review.

There is some urgency in moving forward with the review process outlined
below. Several permits are pending, and roof replacements have been put on
hold.

kK

Process for Consideration of Requests to a Use Synthetic Roof Product

In response to input from the Commission at the February meeting, the review
process is detailed below. Additionally, resident information sheets have been
prepared and are attached for the Commission’'s information.

Review by the Historic Preservation Commission

» Requests for replacement of natural or traditional roof materials with @
synthetic product on residences associated with a Significant Architect as
defined on the attached Significant Architects List will be presented to the
Commission for review and action at a public meeting.

> New residences on which a synthetic roof product is proposed will be
presented to the Commission for review and action. (All new residences
in the Historic District already require Commission review and approval.)

Administrative Review
» Requests for replacement of natural or traditional roof materials with a
synthetic product on residences not associated with a Significant
Architect as defined on the attached Significant Architects List will be
reviewed and processed administratively.



Page 4 of 5

Residences with Facade Easements Held by Landmarks lllinois

>

Requests for replacement of natural or traditional roof materials with a
synthetic roof product which have received prior approval from
Landmarks lllinois, will be reviewed and processed administratively.

The following application submittal requirements and evaluation criteria will
apply to all types of reviews. In addition, the Commission will consider any of the
17 Standards normally applied by the Commission as they may be applicable
for all petitions that are forwarded to the Commission for review.

Application Submittal Reguirements

YVVVY

Application
Checklist
Property survey
Description of existing roofing material
*  Material
=  Thickness
= Coior
Sample of proposed material and color
= Shingle
» Ridge and end caps
Product specifications
= Texture
= Composition
» Color {(monotone or variation)
* Finish
Installation method
» Drawing indicating how product will be applied to front
gables with visible edges, if any
Flashing
*  Material
= Color
Photos of house including from streetscape
Landscape enhancement plan
» |f house is prominent on the streetscape and not softened by
landscaping

Evaluation Criteria

Thickness consistent with the pre-existing roof material

Matte finish.

Soft/light tone — avoid stark colors that call attention to the synthetic
material.

Composition of the product includes some nature materials (limited
minerals are acceptable).



Page 5of 5

» |Imitation slate is recommended over imitation wood if supported by the
architectural style of the residence.

» Flashing color blends with, as opposed to contrasts with, the color of the
roofing product.

> Adequate landscaping exists on the streetscape side of the residence to
soften the prominence of the roof from the streetscape or, a landscape
plan is provided detailing additional plantings proposed to, over time,
soften the prominence of the synthetic roof product from the streetscape.



Community Development Department
800 Field Drive « Lake Forest, IL 60045
Phone 847.234.2600 x2
www.citvoflakeforest.com

e Synthetic Roof Products in the
e Historic Districts/Local Landmarks —
Process Determination

This information packet is designed to guide property owners in the City’s Historic Districts and owners of Locally
Designated Landmarks through the process of considering and applying for approval to install a synthetic roof product.

Information on the review process, submittal requirements and standards for review of synthetic roof products is provided
in this packet.

IS THE STRUCTURE ASSOCIATED WITH A SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECT IDENTIFIED ON THE
SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTS LIST APPROVED BY THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION?

] If YES, Historic Preservation Commission review is required, please contact City staff to secure a
place on an upcoming agenda and submit an application for Commission Review. Applications are
available on the City’s website www.cityoflakeforest.com

] If NO, please submit an application for a building permit including all of the required submittal
materials as detailed on the following page.

Updated: March 14, 2024



| Community Development Department
800 Field Drive » Lake Forest, IL 60045
Phone 847.234.2600 x2
www.citvoflakeforest.com

TR Synthetic Roof Products in the
LAKE FOREST Historic Districts/Local Landmarks —
Application Submittal Checklist

The required submittal materials are listed below.

APPLICATION (PERMIT APPLICATION OF APPLICATION FOR COMMISSION REVIEW)
COMPLETED CHECKLIST

SURVEY

O O O O

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING ROOFING MATERIAL
= Material
= Thickness
= Color

SAMPLE OF PROPOSED MATERIAL AND COLOR
= Shingle
= Ridge and end Caps

[

] PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS
= Texture
=  Composition
s Color (monotone or variation)
®  Finish
] INSTALLATION METHOD

» Drawing indicating how product will be applied to front gables with visible edges, if any

] FLASHING
= Material
= Color

U

PHOTOS OF HOUSE INCLUDING PHOTOS FROM STREETSCAPE

L]

LANDSCAPE ENHANCEMENT PLAN
= If house is not prominent on the streetscape and not softened by landscaping

Please contact Abigail Vollmers, Senior Planner, for additional information.
vollmersa@cityoflakeforest.com or 847-810-3503

Updated: March 14, 2024



Community Development Department
800 Field Drive » Lake Forest, IL 60045
Phone 847.234.2600 x2
www.citvoflakeforest.com

e Synthetic Roof Products in the
LAKE FOREST Historic Districts/Local Landmarks —
Review Standards

Synthetic roof products will be evaluated based on the following standards.

THICKNESS CONSISTENT WITH THE PRE-EXISTING ROOF MATERIAL

L]

MATTE FINISH
SOFT/LIGHT TONE — AVOID STARK COLORS THAT CALL ATTENTION

COMPOSITION OF THE ROOF MATERIAL INCLUDES SOME NATURAL MATERIALS (LIMITED
MINERALS ARE ACCEPTABLE)

IMITATION SLATE IS RECOMMENDED OVER IMITATION WOOD IF SUPPORTED BY THE
ARCHITECTURAL STYLE OF THE RESIDENCE

FLASHING COLOR BLENDS WITH AS OPPOSED TO CONTRASTS WITH THE COLOR OF THE ROOFING
PRODUCT.

O o o o0O4gao

ADEQUATE LANDSCAPING EXISTS ON THE STREETSCAPE SIDE OF THE RESIDENCE TO SOFTEN
PROMINENCE OF ROOF FROM THE STREETSCAPE OR, A LANDSCAPE PLAN IS PROVIDED DETAILING
ADDITIONAL PLANTINGS PROPOSED TO OVER TIME, SOFTEN THE PROMINENCE OF THE SYNTHETIC
ROOF PRODUCT FROM THE STREETSCAPE.

Updated: March 14, 2024



Significant Architects of Lake Forest
1890s — 1960s

Adler, David

Albro, Lewis Coit — Albro & Lindeberg
Aldrich, Chester H. — Delano & Aldrich
Allen, James Roy

Anderson, Stanley (teens)

Bennett, Edward H.

Bennett, Edward (Ted) Herbert, Jr.
Cerny, Jerome (1940s-60s)

Chatten, Melville Clarke —
Chatten & Hammond

Clark, Edwin Hill (1920)

Cobb, Henry Ives (1890s)
Colburn, LW. (1950s)

Cowles, Knight Cheney (1930s)
Cramer, Ambrose (1930s)
Dangler, Henry (teens)

Dart, Edward (1950s)

Double, Leonard (1870s)

Egan & Prindeville4
Egan, James J.
Prindeville, Charles H.

Fisher, Howard T. (1930s)

Frazier, Walter Stephen (1920s-30s)
Frost, Charles Sumner (1920s)
Graham, Anderson, Probst and White

Granger, Alfred (teens) — Frost & Granger
also, Granger Lowe & Bollenbacher

Goodwin, Philip Lippincott (1920s)

Hammond, Charles Herrick -
Chatten & Hammond

Hill Boyd (1930s)
Heun, Arthur (1890s)

Holabird & Roche
Holabird, John Augur
Roche, Martin
Huszagh, Ralph

Print date: March 20, 2024

James, Lee (1930s-40s)

Jensen, Jens

King, John Lord

Kohn, Robert

Lindeberg, Harrie T. (1930s)

Maher, George W.

Marshall, Benjamin H.

Milman, Ralph (1930s-40s)

Morphett, Archibald S. — Milman & Morphett
Mullin, Wilbur A. (1930s-40s)
Nichols, Rose Standish

Olmsted, Frederick Law

Perkins, Dwight

Perkins, Frederick Wainwright (1900s)
Pond and Pond

Puckey & Jenkins
Puckey, Francis Willard
Jenkins, Austin Dickinson

Raftery, John (1930s) — Walter Frazier
Rogers, James Gamble (1900s)
Root, John Wellborn — Holabird & Root

Schmidt, Garden & Martin
Schmidt, Richard E.

Shaw, Howard Van Doren

Shepley, Rutan and Coolidge
Coolidge, Charles Allerton

Spencer & Powers

Studley, David (1880s)

Ticknor, James (1930°s)- Stanley Anderson &
Walcott, Chester H. (1930s)

Walcott, Russell Smith

Work, Robert G.

Wright, Frank Lloyd

Zimmerman, William Carbys



Correspondence



THE LAKE FOREST PRESERVATION FOUNDATION’S STATEMENT
REGARDING THE HPC’s PROPOSED SYNTHETIC ROOF EVALUATION CRITERIA

March 14, 2024

The Lake Forest Preservation Foundation (the “LFPF”) is a not-for-profit organization,
having over 500 members and supporters, almost all of whom are residents of Lake Forest. For
over four decades, the LFPF has been dedicated to the stewardship, safeguarding, and endurance
of Lake Forest’s exceptional architectural and landscape legacy for succeeding generations,
through public education, historic preservation and advocacy. Among its key beliefs is the
preservation of the historic visual character of Lake Forest and thoughtful development that is
sensitive to Lake Forest’s surroundings.

LFPF submits the following comments in connection with the HPC’s proposed Synthetic
Roof Evaluation Criteria.

Proposed Synthetic Roof Evaluation Criteria

For the past several months, the HPC and City Staff have been gathering information,
evaluating synthetic material samples, soliciting input from experts, conducting tours, holding
hearings and workshops, and reviewing potential standards for the use of synthetic roofing
materials in Lake Forest’s Historic Districts. This has been prompted by legitimate homeowner
concerns regarding the cost, quality, and insurability of certain traditional roofing materials,
particularly cedar shingles and shakes.

At the same time, Lake Forest’s Historic Preservation Ordinance provides that while
replacement roofing materials need not be identical to the material being replaced, they “should
match the material being replaced in composition, design, color, texture and other visual qualities.”
§155.08(15). The purpose of this and the other requirements of the Historic Preservation
Ordinance is to promote the “educational, cultural, economic and general welfare of the city” by
preserving, protecting and enhancing the historic and architectural heritage of the City’s historic
structures and districts. §155.01. The unfettered use of synthetic materials would not preserve but
undermine the authenticity of historic structures and districts, which would devolve into little more
than imitation historic structures.

The LFPF applauds the significant efforts of the HPC and the City Staff to address this
issue and develop flexible and objective criteria for the use of synthetic roofing materials — to be
applied on a case-by-case basis — as opposed to a blanket endorsement of a material or product.
Such flexibility is key because (1) each application presents different contextual issues, and (2)
synthetic materials continue to be improved to better match traditional materials in design, color,

1
SGR/0.0



texture and other visual qualities. In the LFPF’s view, significant progress has been made in so
matching some original materials, like synthetic slates, while others, like synthetic cedar shakes
and shingles, continue to have limitations. The City of Lake Forest does not want to repeat the
mistake of Boston which, in 2009, blanketly accepted the use of some artificial materials, including
artificial slate, only to rescind that approval ten years later.

Against this backdrop, the LFPF comments on the proposed Synthetic Roof Evaluation
Criteria, both in terms of scope/context and substance.

Scope and Context of the proposed Synthetic Roof Evaluation Criteria:

As the LFPF understands the proposed Synthetic Roof Evaluation Criteria, they are not
intended to amend or replace the 17 standards set out in § 155.08. The LFPF does not believe the
HPC has power to do so or to delegate its responsibilities to other bodies. Rather, these synthetic
roof criteria apparently are intended “to further explain how the standards set forth in §155.08 may
appropriately be incorporated into a project,” as permitted by 155.03(B)(10), which empowers the
HPC:

To develop guidelines, if it deems appropriate, to further explain how the standards set
forth in §155.08 may appropriately be incorporated into a project. Such guidelines shall be
available from the Community Development Department . . . .

As for those standards, the Historic Preservation Ordinance makes clear that a certificate
of appropriateness is required before “[a]ny alteration, as defined in the Commission’s rules and
regulations, which affects the exterior architectural appearance of a structure” can be undertaken
on a structure within a historic district. §155.07(1)(e). As the HPC has repeatedly concluded,
changing a roofing material affects the exterior architectural appearance of a structure. And, to
obtain a certificate of appropriateness, a petitioner must satisfy 17 standards, at least four of which
apply to roofing:

(7) Relationship of materials and texture. The relationship of the materials and
texture of the facade shall be visually compatible with the predominant materials
used in the structures to which it is visually related.

(8) Roof shapes. The roof shape of a structure shall be visually compatible with
the structures to which it is visually related.

(12) Preserving distinguishing features. The distinguishing original qualities or
character of a property, structure, site or object and its environment shall not be
destroyed or adversely affected in a material way. The alteration of any historic
material or distinctive architectural features should be avoided when possible.

(15) Repair to deteriorated features. Deteriorated architectural features shall be
repaired rather than replaced, wherever possible, in accordance with the Secretary
of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. In the event
replacement is necessary, the new material need not be identical to but should

2
SGR/0.0



match the material being replaced in composition, design, color, texture and other
visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing architectural features should be
based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by historic, physical or
pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the availability of different
architectural elements from other buildings or structures.

§155.08(A).

It appears that the proposed Synthetic Roof Evaluation Criteria are intended to provide
guidelines to further explain (1) how standard 15 applies when a petitioner seeks to replace an
existing roof with a new synthetic material on a structure within the historic district, and (2) what
it means to match the material being replaced in composition, design, color, texture and other
visual qualities. If this is the case, the LFPF submits that the HPC should make this clear to avoid
any confusion that these guidelines are intended to replace or amend the 17 standards.

Substantive Suggestions to the proposed Synthetic Roof Evaluation Criteria:

Given the points raised above, the LFPF does not believe it is appropriate to use different
criteria for homes within historic districts based on fagade easements, architects, or new
construction. All homes within a historic district, whether new or old, are subject to the
requirement of obtaining a certificate of appropriateness when undertaking any of the actions
identified in §155.07(1). Any such projects must satisfy the 17 standards, including the four
standards identified above when seeking to use a synthetic roofing material. Moreover, only the
HPC has the power “to approve or disapprove the issuance of certificates of appropriateness.”
155.03(B)(3). The LFPF does not believe the HPC has the power to (1) apply these standards to
some houses and not others within a historic district, or (2) delegate such responsibility for review
to administrative bodies, as the proposed criteria suggest.

For these reasons, the LFPF believes that the four “homes” categories currently being
proposed should be collapsed into one and should read as follows:

Proposed new and existing homes within a historic district or having local landmark
status seeking a permit for a synthetic roofing material.

J The Commission’s evaluation shall be based on the permit application
requirements above as well as the 17 Standards.

J In addition, the proposed product shall be considered in the context of 1)
the significance of the structure in the larger context of the architect’s work,
2) the historic integrity of the structure, 3) the roof form and its prominence
and impact of the overall structure, 4) the visibility of the roof structure on
the streetscape and in relation to neighboring historic structure.

As for the Synthetic Roofing Evaluation Criteria, the LFPF suggests that the third bullet
be modified as follows:

SGR/0.0



The synthetic material shall have a similar thickness and size as the existing
roof material and should match the material being replaced in design, color,
texture and other visual qualities.

Finally, there are some additional questions the HPC should consider asking when
reviewing requests for synthetic replacement materials:

What size and shapes are available?

What are color choices?

What is the color stability of the new material, and how will it age/weather?
What is the impact resistance?

What is its flame spread rating?

What are the installation requirements of the new material?

Can the feature being replace be custom-produced if ready-made ones of the new
material are not an accurate match?

What is the expected lifespan and/or warranty?

What type of backing does this need before it is installed?

What historic districts have approved it and what districts have denied its use?

The LFPF appreciates the HPC’s consideration of these comments and is available should
the HPC have any questions.

SGR/0.0



	240 E. Deerpath 3.20.2024.pdf
	261 North Mayflower 3.20.2024.pdf
	Roof Materials 3.20.2024.pdf

